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Independent Auditors Report

To the Members of

Epack Prefab Technologies Limited

(Formerly known as Epack Prefab Technologies Pvt Ltd and
Epack Polymers Pvt Ltd)

61-B, Udyog Vihar Surajpur,

Kasna Road, Gautam Buddha Nagar,

Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India - 201306.

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Epack Prefab
Technologies Limited (Formerly known as Epack Prefab Technologies Private Limited and Epack
Polymers Private Limited) (the “Company") and its subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the “Group™), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31°
March 2025, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of
Cash Flow for the Year then ended, and Consolidated Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (collectively referred to as the " Consolidated Financial Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of
subsidiaries (referred to in the Other Matters Section below), the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with Indian
Accounting Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated state of affairs of the
(;r()up as at 31% March 2025, its consolidated profit including consolidated comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and its consohdated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducwd our ﬂlldlt of the Comolldated Fmanmal Statcments in auorddnce wn
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under those SAs are further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements® section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Indian Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us and the audit evidence obtained by other auditors in terms of their reports we have
obtained and referred to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters Section below is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

(1) We draw attention to Note — 54 of the consolidated financial statements, which describe that Epack
Prefab Solutions Private Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, has reported a negative net worth of
(Rs. 70.67) Lakhs as of 31" March 2025. The financial statements of subsidiary have been prepared
on the parent company’s commitment to provide the necessary financial and operational support.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Parent Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Director’s Report but does not include
the standalone and consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon,

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required (o report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated financial position,
Consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, Consolidated cash
flows and Consolidated changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the Accounting
Principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.




The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the respective Companies and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Jjudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Board of Directors
of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the
companices included in the Group are responsible for assessing the respective company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the group are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the respective companies.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent Company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entitics
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
the financial statements of such entities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities or business activities included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other
auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits
carried out by them, We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us read with the *Other Matters’ section below.
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent Company regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of one Indian subsidiary namely “Epack Prefab
Solutions Private Limited”, whose financial statements reflects the total assets of Rs.302.30
Lakhs as at 31%' March 2025, total revenue of Rs. NIL, total profit/(Loss) after tax of Rs.
6.79 Lakhs, total comprehensive income of Rs. 6.79 Lakhs and net cash inflows
(outflows) of Rs. (0.05) Lakhs for year ended on that date, as considered in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. The financial statements / financial information is
audited by another auditor and whose audit report has been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of subsidiary, and our report in
terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of such other auditor.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below is not modified in respect of the above matters with regard to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial
statements / consolidated financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
— A”. a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent
applicable.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of subsidiaries, referred in the Other
Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon, have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements:

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to presentation of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements have been kept by the Management of the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the
Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash
flows and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of
Consolidated Financial Statements.




d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
{(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended.

¢. On the basis of written representations received from the Directors of the Parent Company as
on 31* March, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company, and
the reports of the Statutory Auditors of its Subsidiaries Companies incorporated in India &
Outside India, none of the Directors' of the Parent Company and its Subsidiaries are
disqualified as-on 31° March, 2025 from being appointed as.a Director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act;

£. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure — B”
which is based on the auditors reports of the Parent Company & its Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India & Outside India, our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting of those companics.

g. In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended 31 March,
2025 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and also other financial
information of the subsidiaries as noted in the “Other Matter” Section:

i The Consolidated Financial Statements disclosed the impact of pending litigations on
the Consolidated financial position of the Group to the Consolidated Financial
Statements. (Refer Note: 41 of the Consolidated Financial Statement)

. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

fii.  There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in India.




iv. (@) The respective management of the Parent Company and its Subsidiary Companies

vi.

whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and
to other auditors of such subsidiaries that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (cither from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the respective Parent Company & its
Subsidiaries Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Parent
Company & such subsidiary companies (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective management of the Parent Company and such other subsidiaries
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have represented to us and
to other auditors of such subsidiaries, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the respective Parent Company or any other Subsidiary
Companies from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“F unding Parties™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the respective
Parent Company or such other Subsidiary Companies shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee,
sceurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(¢) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by us and those performed by auditors of subsidiaries
companies whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (iv) (a) and (iv) (b) contain any material misstatement.

The Parent Company and its subsidiary Companies have neither declared nor paid any
dividend during the year.

Based on our examination which included test checks. performed by us on the
Company and its subsidiary company incorporated in India, except for the instances
mentioned below, have used accounting softwares for maintaining their respective
books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the
course of audit, we have not come across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail of previous year has been
preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention to
the extent it was enabled and recorded in the previous year.




However, the Subsidiary Company has used accounling software systems for
maintaining its books of account which did not have a feature of recording audit
trail (edit Jog) facility throughout the year for all the relevant transactions recorded
in the software systems, hence we are unable to comment on audit trail feature of
the said software.

For Talati & Talati LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: . ! '__75,8W/W 100377

CA».I\i:’Iﬁnish Baxi
(Partner)
Membership Number:

UDIN: 25045011BMNSNES456

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 7, 2025
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Annexure ‘A’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date

A statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Parent Company and the
books -of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge: and belief and based on the consideration of CARO report issued by us and by the
auditors of the respective subsidiary companies incorporated in India, we state that:

CARO Repoit issued by us and other auditors on the standalone financial statement of Parent
Company and the Subsidiary included in the Consolidated Financial Statements states that there are
no adverse ‘or qualified remarks mentioned in their audit report as well as in CARO reports of
Subsidiary Company. Therelore, reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the order is not required.

For Talati & Talati LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 110758W/W100377

cA’m\.

UDIN:: 2504501 1BMNSNEG4E6

Place: Mumbai
Date:July 7,2025
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Other Matters

Our report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to separate financial statements of One Indian subsidiary is based
solely upon the corresponding report of the auditor of such subsidiary.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
For Talati & Talati LLP

(Zhai-tc’red Accountants
FRN: 1 GWV.I 00377

CA. Manish Baxi
(Partner)
Membership Number: 045011

UDIN: 25045011 BMNSNES4586

Place: Mumbai
Date: July 7, 2025
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 31st March 2025
Allamounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
Amountin Lacs

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 Asat Ist April 2023
I ASSETS
1 Non- Curr:nt Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2A 20,270.77 18,699 35 11,406,77
) Capital Work - in - Progress 2B 5,590 88 206.66
() Goodwill on Consolidation 30254 30254 30254
(d) Other Intangble Assets 3 11330 12220 67.15
{e) Right of Use Assers 4 444159 4,6K9.50 3,499 79
(0 Financial Assets
(1) Investments 5 215.53 10223 197 89
@) loans 6 416.16 . "
(m)  Others Financial Assets 7 122.83 138 138
(& Other Non - Current Assets 13 37 G145 1,10659
Total Non - Current Assets 31,476.77 24,068.65 16,788.78
2 Currentassets
() Inventonies 9 15,146 48 13,756.59 R17331
M) Financial Assers
1) Trade Recewables 10 20,533 26 12,652 83 1201510
() Cashand Cash Equivalents i 7.935 56 158 26 160 K2
(m)  Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 7,698 04 141094 116915
(iv) Loans 13 3 670.02 159 85
{v) Other Financial Assets 4 74957 446,48 65594
() Other Current Asscets 15 9,245.46 817841 4,081.72
Total Current Assets 61,625.47 37,303.52 26,415.89
TOTAL ASSETS 93,102.24 61,372.17 43,204.66
11 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity -
(4)  Equity Share Capiral 16A 1,550 16 KT 59 387 54
(1) Instruments Enticely Equity m Nature 168 14130
(c) Other Equity 16C 33,701.28 16,508.17 12,221.98
Equity Auributable o Owners of the Holding Group 35,392,714 16,895.71 12,609.52
Non Controlling Intesest
Total Equity 35,392.74 16,895.71 12,609.52
B Liabilities
1 Non- Current Lial
(a)  Fainancial Liabilities
(1) Borrowings 17 1021252 £04270 6,169 91
() Lease Laabilines 18 34289 LYRRE] 30099
() Other Financial Laabilines 10 2,411.86 1,845.62 697.02
) Provissons 20 34372 130 49 19733
(e) Deferred Tax Labilities 21 87971 739 11 60762
Total Non - Current Liabilities 14,190.70 1L,131.07 7,972.87
2 Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilives
() Borrowng 22 10,810 60 442336
(w)  laase Laabnhnes 23 115.60 15 40
(m)  Trade Payables 24
(A} total outstanding dues of miceo enterprises and small enterprises, and 237335 2,501 99 132521
(B) rotal oustanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprses and small 1901879 15,763 70 11,16295
enterprises
(v) Other Financial Liabilines 25 131457 107101 1,138 06
W) Provisions 26 71154 24309 170,34
(€)  Currens Tax Lasbuhiry 27 1959 52 141506 K14 51
() Other Current Liabwlines 28 721482 5,757 83 354245
Total Current Liabilities 43,518.79 33,345.39 22,622.24
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 93,102.24 61,372.17 43%:
Material Accounting Policies 1

lid: Financial §

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS C

As per our Report of even date
For Talati & Talati LLP Forand on behalf of the Board

For EPACK PREFAB TF(‘I{IP)LO(‘IFS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOL)
PRIVATE LIMITED AND 9 'OLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

4
el M@mé
Mr. Nikhil Bothra 7r. Rahul Agz Mrs. Nikita Singh

Director _ Chief Financial Officer Company Scretary &

Hnmnd Accountants

CA Manish Baxi
Partner

Gging Dicector & CEO

Membership No. 045011 DIN: 01291342 DIN mu."m s
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE
LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Note | Year ended 31st March Year ended 31st March

EAmiERlate No. 2025 2024
I INCOME
Revenue from Operations 29 1,13,391.72 90,490.17
Other Income 30 657 42 147.33
Total Income 1,14,049 14 90,637.51
11 EXPENSES
Cost of Matenals Consumed 31 75,756 05 65,241.75
Changes 1n Inventones of Finished Goods, Stock-In-Trade and Work-In-Progress 32 (1,292 61) (3,975.62)
Employee Benefits Expense 33 10,095 50 6,483 85
Finance Costs 34 2,424 69 1,739.17
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 35 1,730 65 1,266.77
Other Expenses 36 17,053 39 14,028.42
Total Expenses 1,05,767.66 84,784.34
1T Profit / (loss) before share of Profit / (Loss) of Associate and Exceptional Items and Tax 8,281.48 5,853.17
IV Share of Profit / (loss) of Associate (192.23) (5.66)
Vi Profit before execeptional items and tax 8,089.26 5,847.51
VI Exceptional Item
VII Profit / (I ss) before tax 8,089.26 5,847.51
VIII Tax expense
Current Tax 37 1,960 70 1,416.86
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 37 151 85 134.75
Tax in Respect of Earlier Years 37 44.49 -
IX  Profit/(Loss) for the year from Continuing Operations 5,932.22 4,295.90

X Other Comprehensive Income
(i) Items that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of Net Defined Benefit Plans (44.68) (12.96)
Income Tax Relating to Above Items 37 1125 3.26
(ii) Items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Difference due to changes in foreign exchange reserves
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (33.44) (9.70)
XI  Total Comprehensive Income for the year 5,898.79 4,286.20

Profit Attributable to :

Owners of the Holding Group: 593222 4,295.90
Non Controlling Interest :
Profit for the year 593222 4,295.90

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Group : (33 44) 9.70)
Non Controlling Interest :
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (33.44) (9.70)

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to:

Owners of the Holding Group : 5,898 79 4,286.20
Non Controlling Interest
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 5,898.79 4,286.20
X Earnings per equity share of T 2 each (for continuing operation): 38
Basic EPS (%) 7.55 5.54
Diluted EPS (%) 7.39 5.54
Material Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS C lidated Fi ial Stat ts.
As per our Report of even date
For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of the Board
OLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PRE

Chartered Accountants For EPACK PREFAB TE(
/Y, 7 PRIVATE LIMITEWD

CK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

@%\*9 \
Mr. Nikhil Bothra ml‘;mﬁ“ rs. Nikita Singh

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

CA Manish Baxi

Partner Director

anaging Director & CEO
Membership No. (45011 DIN: (112‘)1 347 DIN: 1()1(»2771-(

‘
Place : MUMbad Place: Place: M Place: M W’L_w Place: NO\D &
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND

EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Particulats Year ended 31st March Year ended 31st
2025 March 2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activitics
Restated Profit before exceptional Items and tax as per statement of profit and loss S SATA1
Adjustments for: - -
Depreciation and amortization expenses 1,730.65 1,266.77
Finance cost on Borrowings and Lease Liabilty 2,424.6Y 1,739.17
Transfer to Reserve & FCTR Adjustment " .
Share of loss in associate 92.23 5.66
ESOP Expenses 30.19 -
Interest income (325.58) (129.70)
Rent Income 3 .
Fair Valuation of Investments through Profit and Loss (0.53) -
Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans (44.68) (12.96)
Gain on loss of significant Influence of Associate (200.00)
(Profit)/ loss on sale of Land Rights
Gamn on loss of control of Subsidiary . 2
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed assets (net) (6.70) (11.60)
Operating profit before working capital changes 11,389.52 8,704.85
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/decrease in ‘Trade Recervables (7,880.43) (637.73)
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories (1,559.89) (5,613.29)
(Increase)/decrease in Other Non current Financial Assets .
(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets (303.08) 209.45
(Increase)/decrease in Short Term Loans 352.91 (510.16)
(Increase)/decrease in Other Current Asscts (1,067.06) (4,096.69)
Increase/ (deerease) 1in Long Term Provisions 21323 73.76
se) in Trade & other payables 3,006.45 5,807.53
) in Short Term Provisions 168.44 (67.84)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 1,456.99 2.269.62
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 242.65 (120.39)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Long Term Financial Liabilities 566.24 1,148.60
Increase/ (decrease) in Current Tax Liability > =
7,675.98 7,167.71
Less: Direet taxes paid (net of refunds) (1,460.72) (816.31)
6,15.26 6,351.40
Less: ixceptional Ttems
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activitics after exceptional items (A) 6,.215.26 6,351.40
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Inflows
Sale proceeds / (Purchase) of property, plant and equipment 13.40 44.50
Sale proceeds / (Purchase) of Investments / Loss of Control : .
Interest recerved 325.53 129.70
Outflows
Other Non Current Assets 58.28 1,045.15
Purchasc of property, plant and equipment/ intangible assets (8,710.59) (8,307.41)
Purchase of Investments (15.00) 5
Loans to related parties (416.16)
Investment in Fixed Deposits (6,408.56) (241.79)
Additions in ROU Asset 67.76 (1,322.93)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (B) (15,085.29) (8,652.79)




C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Inflows
Proceeds from issue of Shares 12,568.05 -
Proceeds from Short term Borrowings 2,169.82 2,065.12
Proceeds from long term Borrowings 4,522.13 1,872.79
Increase / (Decrease) in Lease Liability 12.03 100.09
Outflows

Repayment of Long term Borrowings
Repayment Short term Borrowings

Dividend Pad

Receipt/ Payment of Share application money 5
Finance Cost on Lease Liability (45.02) (35.30)

Finance Cost on borrowings (2,179.67) (1,703.86)
Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities (C) 16,647.33 2,298.82
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Bank Balances (A+B+C) 7,177.30 (2.56)
Add : Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year 58.26 160.82
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 7,935.56 158.26

Cash and Cash equivalent as per above comprises of the following

Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 11) 7,935.56 158.26
Bank Balances Other Than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Refer Note 12) 7,098.04 1,410.94
Balances as per Statement of Cash Flows 7,935.56 158.26

lidated Fi a1 R

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Ind AS C

Notes:
() The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as sct out in Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows", whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordin wry items and tax s adjusted
for the cffects of transactions of non-cash nature. The cashflows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based on the avadable information.

() Additions to property, plant, equipment and intangible assets include movements of capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development respectively during the year.
As per our Report of even date
For Talati & Talati LLP For and on behalf of the Board

For EPACK PREFA@ frECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES
PRIVATE LIM&ED Al EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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w

Other Intangible Assets

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

Computer Software

Gross Carrying Amount

Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Additions during the year
Disposals/adjustments during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2024
Additions during the year
Disposals/adjustments during the year

Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Additions during the year
Disposals/adjustments during the year
Balance as at 31st March 2024
Additions during the year
Disposals/adjustments during the year

Net Carrying Amount
Balance as at 1st April, 2023
Balance as at 31st March 2024

67.15
58.16

25.31

125.31

in

3
8.91

12.01

67.15
122.20
113.30
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATIZ LIMITED)

CIN - U74999U P1999PLC116066

Notes to C

6

d Financial § for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

Loans

Amount in Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 [ As at 1st April 2022
Unsecured - considered good
Loans to related parties (Refer Note 45 416,16
Total SR —— J S SI—
Other Non - Current Financial Assets

Amount in Lacs
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 | As ar 1st April 2023
Balances with Banks - In deposit A/c 122.83 1.38 1.3¢
Total 122.83 1.38 1.38

* Faxed depotits/ marvin maney deposit of Rs 122.83 Lakhs has been held as margin money against issuance of bank guarantee and letter of credits provided in fuvour of customers and suppliers

Other Non - Current Assets

Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 [ As at st April 2023
Unsecured Considered Good
Capital Advances
Advances to Vendor for Capital goods 3.17 61.45 1.106.59
Total 3.17 61.45 1,106.59
Inventories
Amount in Lacs

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 As at Tse April 2024
Raw Mategisls 5,484,185 SA71 7N A 1687Y
Wesekein Propress 783056 60019 2708
Hiniahed poesls 0489 22900 M5
Pagking Maresial (] Al $.4%
Stusrer & Spntes RLARE ] AT W2
Stock in Transit (FG) 604.9G 39219 452.37
Consumables 9.62 57.15 197.6)
Total 15,146.48 13,786.59 8,173.31
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to C lidated Financial § for the year ended 31st March 2025

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stared

11 Cush and Cash Equivalents
Amour tin Lacs
. As at 31st March As at 31st March =
Particulars 2025 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Cash on hand 38.94 62,59 25.45
Balances with Schedule Banks - In current accounts 496.61 95.67 13537
Deposits with onginal maturity of less than 3 months 7,400.01 - -
Total 7,935.56 158.26 160.82
12 Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
Amour tin Lacs
As at 31st March As at 31st March "
Particulars 2025 2024 As at Ist April 2023
Balances with Banks - In deposits A/c 7,698.04 1,410.94 1,169.15
Total 7,698.04 1,410.94 1,16'.15

Fixed deposits/ margin money deposit of Rs 258.14 Lakhs has been held as margin money against issuance of bank

13 Loans
Amour tin Lacs
% As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2025 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Loans:
- 10 relared parties 402.40 .57
- 1o Employees 3 166.19 150.28
-- to Others 101.43
Total 31711 670.02 159.85

14 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Amour tin Lacs

Particulars At 3;'25“""' Aust ;‘;M“"" As at 1st April 2023
Secunty Deposit ©
(a)  To Related Parties 200.00 500 00
()  To Others 211.64 189.87 15594
Insurance Claim Receivable 56.61
Unamortized Share Issuance Fxpenses 53793

Total 749.57 446.48 655.94

* Note: Dunng the Financial Year 2024-25, Epack Prefab Technologics Limited (formerly known as EPACK Prefab Technologies Private Limited and EPACK Polymers Pavate Lim ted) his
filed the Dreaft Red Herring Prospectus (DRHP) with SEBI in conneetion with its proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO), comprising a Fresh Issue of Fquity Shares and an Offer for fale (OFS)
by the sclling sharcholders

Accordingly, the expenses incurred by the Company up tu 31st March 2025, in relation t- the preparation and filing of the DRHP and the proposed IPO, amounting to Rs. 337,93 Lab hs, have
been classified under “Current Financial Asscts ~ Other Receivables.” This classification has been niade in the absence of the finalised rato between the Fresh Tssue and the OFS, shich 1 yet 10
be determined by the Company

15 Other Current Assets
Amour tin Lacs

As ar 31st March As at 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Uhsverivet Danaldermd Gued

Phigralit enpietines W4 1318 2510
Advancer to Suppliers 2

() To Related Partiee 61,01 471 51.12
() To Others _5,302.38 4,173.35 1,440.65
Totwr 5,903 4,182 182
G8T Credit 1o he Recoverable 32535 894,52

Bal with G A i -

(%)  Advance Income Tax 600,00 55.00 248 0

(b)  TDS Recewable 1,154.88 1,376.58 953 KBS

(€) TCS Recewable 244 1545 1294

(d)  GST Credit 85791 1,248.18 1,065 48

(e) Deposit with Revenue Authorities 94.33 128.46 77.77
Total 2,710 2,824 2,358
Total 9,245.46 8,178.41 4,081.72




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

16A Equity Share Capital

As at 318t March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Particulars Number of shares ] Amount Number of shares I Amount Number of shares l Amount
Equity Shares of 22 each Equity Shares of 210 each Equity $hares of 210 cach
[Authorised Share Capital

11,000,000 I 2,200.00 w,m‘(m[ 40000 400,000 [ 40000

Equity Shares

G

Authroised Share Capital :

Pursuant tu the resolutun passed by the Holding Company t the Annual General Meeuny of the Company held un Septembee 30, 2024, the Authunsed Share Capital of the Company has been increased from Rupees 4000
(a) Lakhs consisting of 40,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each to Rs. 2400.00 Lakhs consisuny of Equity Share Capital of Rs. 220000 Lakhs divided into 2,20,00,000 Exquity Shares of Rx. 10/ each and Prefe ence Share Capital of
R 200,00 Lakhs divided into 20,00,000 0,0001% Compulsurily eonvertible Preference Shares of Rs, 10/- each.

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Holding Company in the Annual General Meeong held on September 30, 2024, the Authonsed Share Capial of the Holding Company was altered / changed by +ub-division / sphtang of
(b) 2,200,000 Equity Shates having face value of Ry, 10 each 10 11,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each and 20,00,000 0.0001% Compulsorily convertible Preference Shares haviny face value of Rs. 10 each to 10000000
0.0001% Compulsorily convertible Prederence Shares of Rs. 2 each

(iii) Split of Face Value of Shares:
(&) Pursuant to the resolution passed by the Holding Company in the Annual General Meeting held on Scprember 30, 2024, the face valur of the cquity shares was splt from Rs. 10 per equity share 1o Rs 2 per Equity Share

(b Accurdingly, the issued, subscabed, and paid-up equity share capieal of the Holding Company, being 38,75,400 Equity Shares of R 10 cach was splis intu 1,93,77,000 Equiry Shares of R, 2 cach

(iii)\ Issue of Bonus Shares:
Pursuant 1o the resolution passed by the Board of the Holding Company in the Meering held on Seprember 30, 2024, issuance of 3 honus shares of face value Rs. 2/ each for every | exssung fully pud-up equity share of face

@ value Rs. 2/- was approved.

Resolution for allotment of these sharcs was approved by the board of dircctors on September 30, 2024 and $.81,31,000 bonus shares having face valuc of Rs. 2/- were issued resulting 0 7,75, 08,000 total number of cquiry shares
®) " of the Holding Company having face value Rs. 2/ each. The Holding Company has issucd bonus shares in accardance with Scction 63 of the Companies Act, 2013

(&) Theimpact of issuance of bonus shares has been sccordingl dered for the Comp of Earnings Per Share ax per the requirement of lad AS 33 - Eaming Per Share
Ax at 3at March 2025 As at 31t March 2024 As at Ist April 2023
Particulurs Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity Shares of €2 cach Equity Shares of € 10 cach Equity hares of 10 cach
Tosued, subscribed and paid up
Equity Shares 75,0800 1,350.16. 38,75,400 7 54 I AN 187,54
Toral 7,75,08,000 1,550.16 38,75,400 38754 38,7¢ 300 387.54

Notes:
(a)  Reconciliation of number of sharex

As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 An at 1st April 2023

Beicutin Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Nuimber of shares Amount
Fquity Shares -

Balance ay at the beginning of the year 38,75,400 87.54 38,75,400 388 38,75.400 7.54
impact.of share. i disiog theyenr 15501 600 : . p
Shares issued during the year 5,81.31,000 1.162.62 - -
Shares cancelled back during the year 5 :

Hulance as st the end of the year - 7,74,08,000 _1,850.16 J8,78,400 387.54 38,78, 400

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached ta shares
Equiy shares: The Holding Company has one s of equity shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each shareholder is cligibl for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject o the
approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annud General Mecting, except in case of interim dividend, In the event of iquidation, the equity sharcholders are cligible to receive the remaining asiets of the Cornpany after distrbution of
all amounts, in propartion to their sharehold

() Details of equity shares held by sharcholder holding more than 8% of the aggregate shares in the Holding Group

As at 31st March 2025 An at 31at March 2024 As af Tst April 2023 ]
|Particutars
s Number of shares % of holding Number of shares “%ofholding | Numberof hares | % of holding

Barang Ll Bothra 5326750 w167 325,500 [ 325 500 W
1 cela Devi Bothra 4975424 6.42% 255950 6.60% 2,55 950 6,600
Laxmi Pat Bothra 73872 953% 3,50450 904% 3,50 450 9.04%
Suman Devi Bothrs 51,23,000 661% 333,400 860% 333400 8.60%
Nitin Bothra 36,01,866 465" 240,000 6.19% 2,40 000 6.19%
Sanjay Singhania 73,5763 9.49% 387,500 9.99% 387 5000 9.99%
Ajay DD Singhania 75.25,685 971%, 347,500 9.99% 387500 9.99%
Pinky Ajay Singhania 7543052 973% 387,500 9.99% 347500 9.99%
Preity Singhanta 8,74,460 BE™% 147,500 9.99% 357500 9.99%
Rt Bothra 7531368 972% 387,400 999% 387 400 9.99%




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

(d) Di of ing of

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year i.e 31st March 2025 :

Promoter Name As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 % change dunng
Number of shares % of total shares Number of shares % of total shares the year
Sanjay Singhani 7357631 9 49%, 3,87,500 9.99% 0 50%
Ay DD Singhania 75,25,685 9% 9.99% 0 28%,
Bayrang Lal Bothra 63,26,730 R16% B0 0124%
Nikht! Bothra 27,21,400 351% 45,000 1.16% 235%
Laxm Pat Bothra 73,57.256 9.53% 1,50,450 Y 04 (1 49"
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year i.e 31st March 2024 :
As at 318t March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Promoter Name Wichtogé diring
Number of shares % of total shares Number of shares % of total shares the year
Sanjay Singhanua 3,87,500 9.99% 387,500 9.99% 0 00%
Ajay DD Singhania 387,500 9.99% 387,500 9.99%% 000%
Bajrang Lal Bothra 3,25,500 Bl 3.25,500 B4, 000%
Laxmy Pat Bothra 3,50,450 904% 3,350,450 9.04%, 0 (0%
168 Instruments Entirely Equity in Nature
Compulsorily covertible Preference Shares
As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
[Particulars
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised Share Capital
0.0001% Compulsonly convertible Preference Shares of 2 2 cach 1,00,00,000 20000
P AT As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Tasued, subscribed and paid up —
70,65217 141.30
0.0001% Compulsorily convertible Preference Shares of ¥ 2 each S 1
Notes:
(%) Reconciliation of number of shares
Particilar As at 319t March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at Ist April 2023
Number of shares Amaount Number of shares Amournit Number of shares Amount
Preference Shares :
Balance as at the beginning of the year g % 5 5 - .
Shares issued duning the vear 70,65,217.00 141.30
Shares bought back dunng the year
Balunce ax at the end of the year 70,65,217.00 141.30 - - -

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

0.0001% Compulsonly covernible Preference shares: The Compang has one class of preference shares having a par value of Rs.2 per share. Each shareholder shall carry preferential ight vis-a-vis Lquiry shares 1 the Company with
respect to payment of dividend and repayment in case of winding up of the Company. ‘The dividend shall accrue and be payable ar the end of each allotment year

Thas elass of Preference Shares is subscription Compulsory Convertible Cumulative Preference shares of face value of Rs. 2 per share The holders of Subscription CCCPS shall, ac any time at the Option of He lder OR Prior 10 20 years
from the date of issuance of the same, be enitled t call upon the Company to convert all or any of the Subscription CCPS by issuing a ntice v the Company accompanied by the share certificate representing the CCPS saught to be
converted OR In the event of Liguidation af Company

The Subserption CCPS shall be converted inte maximum upta 10743792 Number of Equity Shares The holders of subscription CCPS shall be entitled t vixe an all marters that are submiteed 0 vore of the sharchoblers of the
Company at pan passu with equiry sharchalder right




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK

POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to Consolidated Fi ial S
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

16C Other Equity

for the year ended 31st March 2025

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March 2024

As at 1st April 2023

Particulars As at 31st March 2025
(i) Share Based Payment Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the period/year - -
Employee Stock Option expense 30.19
Balance at the end of the period/year (B) 30.19 -
(ii) Securities Premium
Balance at the beginning of the period/year -
Issuc of Preference Shares at premium 12,858.69
Share Issuance Expenses (431.95)
Balance at the end of the period/year (C) 12,426.74 -
(iii) Retained Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 16,508.70 12,212.81 12,212.81
Net Profit for the period/year 5,932.22 4,295.90
Transfers during the period/year (Net) -
Utilisation of Reserves (Bonus Issue)* (1,162.62) -
Unrealised Profit on Stocks - -
Balance at the end of the year (D) 21,278.31 16,508.70 12,212.81
(iv) Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Liability (OCI)
Balance at the beginning of the year (0.53) 9.17 9.17
Movement during the period/vear (33.44) (9.70)
Transfer from Retained Earnings
Balance at the end of the year (E) (33.97) (0.53) 9.17
Total (i+ii+iii+iv) 33,701.28 16,508.17 12,221.98

* During the year , Holding company has utilised the aforementioned reservse for issue of bonus shares

Notes:

Retained Earnings: “Retained earnings are created from the profit of the Company, as adjusted for distribution ro owners, transfer to other reserve, remeasurement of

defined benefit plan, etc.”

Security Premium Reserve * Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The reserve will be utilised in aceordance with provisions of the

Act”

Other Comprehensive Income:” The profits and losses which are routed out of statement of profit and loss are classified in other comprehensive income.”

ESOP Reserve: ESOP Reserve is created based on the expected no of options to be vest by the employees and it will be used once the compzny will receive exercise price

from the employees.




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C; lidated Fi ial S for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

17 Non - Current Borrowings

Purdealass As at 31at March 2025 | Axar 31st March 2024 As at Ist April 2023
Secured
(i)  Term Loans from banks (a+b+c+d+c) (Refer Note A below) 6,888.10 362199 2,809.12
HDFC Bank ltd 305089 1475.47 1,6:6.04
Less: Current Matunty of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22) 55841 (525.47) (550.57)
(a) 2,492.48 550.00 1,075.47
Axis Bank H60.88 107559 2490.29
1ess: Current Matunity of Long-term Debs (Refer Note 22) 1971 (814.71) (814.71)
(b) 14118 850.88 1,675.59
IDFC First Bank 203750
: Current Marurity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22) (815.00)
(c)| 1,222.50 - -
Shinhan Bank 1,250.00
Less: Current Matnty of Long-term Debis (Refer Note 22) (5000
(d) 750.00 = =
Yes Bank 2,798.61 255806 1
Less: Current Maturity of Long-term Debts (Refer Note 22) (516.67) (446.94) (69.67)
{e) 2,281.94 2,111 58.06
(i) Vehicle Loans (f+g) (Refer Note B below) 189.50 141.66 mm
Bank of Baroda Car Loan 216 2582 4731
Less: Current Maturity of Longterm Debts (Refer Note 22) (2.16) (24.17) (3232
(0} 164 2499
HDFC Bank Car Loan 29721 3498 345,04
Less: Current Maturity of Long-teem Debts (Refer Note 22) (107.7Y ()4.96) (Y8.85)
®) 189.50 140.02 246.78
(iii)  Term Loan from Financial Institutions (h) (Refer Note C below) 31349 421.57 2,804.28
Bagay Finance Limited 416505 4a79mn 303982
Less: Carrent Matunty of Long-term Debts (Refer Nore 22) (1,030.14) (158.15) (235.53)
(h) 31340 4421.57 2,804.28
Unsecured
(iv)  Unsccured Loan from Related Parties (i+j+k) (Refer Note D below) - 15747 28475
@ Unsccured Loans from Dircctors
() Unsecured Loans from Relanves of Directors 5747 W75
(& Loan fram Corporates
Tortal (i+ii+iii+iv) 10,212.52 8,042.70 6,109.91

(A) The details of repayment terms, rate of intereat, and narure of securities provided in respect of secured term loans from banks are as below:

Nature of Security Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As ar 31st March 2025

As at 3st March 2024

As at st April 2023

Term toan ineludes loan obtalned by Helding Gompany from HDFC Rank.

60 cqual monthly instalments afier moratorium of 12 months
for each tranche such that door 1o door tenor is capped at 72
months

[The above loan is secured by way of following:

0 First Pan Passu charge on entire Movable Fixed Aspets of the eompany (Both Present
[0

& Future)

Seco ass v hec: g s of the
Second Par Passu change by way uf Hpusheeauon on ntie curren assers o he [ 10%0 ) ARl e

8.50% p.a.

O company (Both Present & Future)

INR 4300 Lucs is obrained which is repayable over the period of

Ratc of Inrerest - 9.00% linked to 3 Month T-Bill - valid for 15

2,50049

2 . € Udyog Vihar, Grearer N
(i) Firse Pan passu charge on Land & Builing of 61 B & C Udyog Vitr, Greater Nowda |1 Al conhh R el a5 vy bR Tof 14

Negative Lien on land & building of B-13, Sector Feotech-1, Greater Noida,
LP201306. (*Land 1s in name of FPack Prefab Solutions Private Limited)

Rate of Interest MCLR Floating rate + 1% Spread=9.25% pa

() |(Effecuve)

INR 452 Lacs is obtaned which is repayable over the penod of

2547

276,04




First pari passu charge with Yes Bank only on land and building of Plot No. 5 and 6

INR 1000 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the period of

Singhania, Me. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajsy DD Singhania and Mr. Bajrang Botha

Ratc of Interest - As on 31.03 2025: 8 50% pa

™ Industrial Pack Phase 11 Andhra Pradesh 60 equal monthly instalments
400.00 00,00 ¥0.00
Exclusive charge on Plot no. 6 A and B Industrial Park Phase 11, Mambartu
() VillageAndhra Pradesh Ratc of Intcrest: As on 31.03.2025 817% p.a
(wny Fim Par pass charge on Indstral propersy located a Plot No SP 128, Industria
i .
Arca Ghiloth INR 1040 Lacs 15 obtuned which 1s repayable over the penod of
5 veurs 20 equal quarterly instaiments after moratoriuin penod
— . of 6 months
Exclusive charye on Land and Building of B-14 Sector Eco Tech - 1, Greater Noida.
() Ihig security is exelusively for Losn of INR 1040 Las,
150.4m ASOn 55000
. Iuis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr. Sanjay
%) Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mz. Bayrang Bothea
Rate of Interest: As on 31.03.2025: K.17%% paa,
Extension of second ranking charge over existing prmary and collareral securities
) inchucting mortgages cresed in favaur of HDFC Bank
INR 3500 Lacs is obtained which is repayable over the period of
[ Teem loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from YES Bank. 84 months including 12 months fram the date of firs
d 2,798.61 20000
[The abave loan 1x secured by way of following: Ratc of Interest for GECL - EBLR + | %
As on 31.03.2025: 885% pa.
INR 209 Lacs is obtamned which 1s repayable over the period of
@ Second charge n Land & Building of 61 B & C Udyog Vihar, Grester Noida 48 month including 12 months from the dare of first
disbursement.
806 1772
_ Second Pani Passu charge by way of Hyporhecanon on movable fixed assets of the
®) compsny Bach Present and Forure)
(yy Second Pari Passu charge b way of Hyporhecation on enti cureent assets of the
company (Both Present & Future) Rate of Interest for GECL - EBLR + 1 %
y  Itis secured by way of Personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhana and Mr. Ajay DD
Singhania, Me. Bajrang Bothra, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra
[Term loan inclides Inan obtained by Holding Compuny from TDFC First Bank . INR 2800 Lacs 15 obstained which i w be ropaid in'6 equated
half yearly mstallments
[The above loan i seeured by way of following
af v CER Lo PR 20V 40
) First Pari Dass ehiare on Current Ansets sl Mewalile Aveti vt iy, [t af eerens < EBIi(Rapo Rate 4 2% pid) = 900 pa
() Itus further sccured by way of Personal Guranree of Mr. Sanjay Singharia ard Mi
Apay DD Singhania, Mr. Bajrang Bothes, Me. Laximu Pat Bothra
’ INR 150000 Lacs 15 obrained owhich is repavable over the
[Term Judes loan obtained by Holdi from Shinhan Bank .
et lgaincosies loaatsiaed by Hokding Commiy, tmoniohaa fan penod of 3 months (12 equal quarterly installments)
of W e 2.10% =
The above loan 1x secured by way of followiny: Rate of trierest - Repo rate it 6.50% plus spread Le 2.1(% 1250.00
8,60% pa
@ is secured by way of personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhania and Me. Ajay DD
Singhania, Mr. Barang Bothra, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra
[Term loan includes loan obrained by Holding Company from AXIS Bank. INR 240000 Lacs repayable in § years inchuding moratonum
period of 8 months( 17 quartedy installments with 16 quarterly
[The above loan is secured by way of following: installments of Rs.14117647 each and last installment of
14117 "
@) Tuis securcd agunst first Pari Passu charge on entire cutrent assets of the company | 417048 after moratorium penod of 8 munths starting 705,88 117059 184529
from date of first disbursement.
(present and Future).
() Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire movable fixed assets of
iy sy Rate of Interest - As on 31.03.2025: 9.60% p.a
() Second Pari passu charge leaschold land and Building located at 618-C Udhyog Vibar
Greater Noida. INR 1000.00 1 acs is obtained which is repayable over the
(w)  Second Pari passu charge over Leasehold Land and Building locared at SPS-128 period of § years including moratorium period of 12 months (In
Ghiloth Industrial Arca cqual quarterly instalments of Rs 6250€00 each afier 12 months
(¥)  Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector | Feo tech Grenter Noida | from the date of fiest disbursement 155.00 105.00 635.00
(owned by Fpack Prefab Solutions Pyt Ltd.
(vi)  Iuis further sccured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr. Sanjay




(B) The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of vehicle loans from banks are as below:

©

(D)

Nature of Security

[Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31st March 2025

As at st March 2024

As at Ist April 2023

Vehicle loan includes loan obtamned by Holding Company from HDFC Bank.

INR 235.03 Lacs vehicle luan obtained and repayable in 39

hi s
monthly cqual instaliments 29721 3498 345.64
Vehicle Loan is secured by way of Hypothecation of respective Vehicle Rate of Interest - As on 31032025 : 6.77%-9.00% pa.
Vehicle loan includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Bank of Baroda. INR 67.68 Lacs vehicle loan was obrained repayable in 36
monthly equal installments
216 2582 4731

Vehicle Loan 15 sceurcd by way of Hyporhceanon of respective Vehicle

Ratc of Intcrest - As on 31.03.2025: 9.50% pa.

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from financial institutions are as below:

Nature of Security

Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest

As at 31xt March 2025

Aw ut st March 2024

As at Int April 2023

Loan from Financial Institution includes loan obtamed by Holding company from Baaj
Finance limited

The abave loan s secured by way of fallowing:

0 First Pan Passu charpe on entire Movable and immovable Fixed Assets of the
W company.

(i) Second Pan Passu charge on current assets

Itis further secured by way of Personal Gurantee of Mr. Sanjay Singhania and Mr

(i) Ajay DID Singhania, Mr. Bairang Bothra, Mr, Laxmi Pat Bothra

clate of first draw-down

INR 5200 Lacs loan was obtained which is repayable over the
period of 72 months after & moratonum of 12 months from the

Floating Interest Rate (1.c Sum of Benchmark Reference Rate
+Spread ) (As on 31.03.2025 - 9.20% pa,)

416505

437972

30982

“The Company has not defaulted on repayment of secured/unsecured loans and interest during

the year,

The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from related parries are as below:
Nature of Security Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest Asat31st March 2025 | Awar 315 March 2024 | Aw at Ist April 2023
Loan from Related Parnes includes loan obtaned by Holding Company from Drishika Rate of Interest - 9% pa. Fixed Interest Rate a9 037
n K258 10012
f 1 <P pa
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Avishi Singhania Ragofdnmprent - e Sl I Rus
. R2.6Y9
9% pa. Fi ¢
Lovan from Related Parties includes loan obtaned by Holding Company from Madhu Agrawal Ruae of Intereat - 9% pid. Fiied Trctsest Rate
P p.: y
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtaied by Holding Company from Sanjay Singhania Ruteolnsesei: SLER FIRad InterestiRone
" .. 4049 00 4%
Luan from Related Parties includes loan ubtained by Holding Company from Anishka Rate of Interest - 9% pa. Fixed Interest Rate
Singhania
= 9230 2 R4
nf | P pa. Fixed
Loan from Related Parmes includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Anju Singhana ReEohinecs - Ve RE Flmvai e
5022 195

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from Amit Singhania

Rate of Interest

P4 pa. Fixed Interest Rate

Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtamed by Holding Company from Divisha
Singhunia

Rate of Interest -

9% pa. Fixed Interest Rate




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS

PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C

18  Non - Current Lease Liabilities

lidated Fi ial 8 for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unloss otherwise atated

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023

Lease Liability (Refer Note 40) 458.50 446.47 346.38
Less : Current Matunities of Lease Liability (Refer Note 23) (115.60) (73.33) (45.40)
Total 342.89 373.14 300.99

19 Other Non - Current Financial Liablities

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Security Deposit for Service Contractors 2411.86 1,845.52 0697.02
Total 2,411.86 1,845.62 697.02
20 Long Term Provisions
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Gratuity (Refer Note 39) 288.88 103.64 197.33
Leave Encashment 54.84 26.85 -
Total 343.72 130.49 197.33
21 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Deferred Tax Liabilities 879.71 739.11 607.62
879.71 739.11 607.62

At the end of the period/year
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Component of Deferred Tax Liabilities / Asset

Charge/ (Credit to)
Particulars Opening Statement of Profic & | Other Comprehensive Closing
Low Income

As at 15t April 2023

Deferred tax labilities / (asset) in relation to:

Property, Plent and Eq Intangible Awrets & 1 Property 740,54 170,80 1134
ROL asser 63.15 21.14 . 86.29
Prowision for Employce Benefits (49.66) (15.30) (3.26) (68.23)
Provision for Bonus (19.09) (5.44) (24.54)
Lease Liability (87.18) (25.19) (112.37)
Provision for expected credit loss (42.14) (11.25) - (53.39)
As at 31st March 2024 607.62 134.75 (3.26) 739.11
As at 1st April 2024

Deferred tax liabilities / (asset) in relanon to:

Property, Plant and Equip Intangible Assets & | Property 911.34 234.19 1,145.53
ROU asset 86.29 0.21) 86.08
Fair Value gain of Mutual funds 0.13 013
Provision for Employee Benefits (68.23) (36.75) (11.25) (116.23)
Provision for Bonus (24.59) (22.43) - (46.97)
Lease Liability (112.37) (3.03) (115.39)
Provision for expected credit loss (53.39) (6.90) (60.29)
Trade Payables - (13.14) (13.14)
As at 31st March 2025 739.11 151.85 (11.25) 879.71




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C d Financial § for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

22 Current Borrowings

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at Ist April 2023
Secured (Refer Note A & C below)
() Cash Credit 6,559.21 1,496.25 2,539.42
(i) Commercial card Limit 1.61 8243 92.23
() Current M: of Long Term B s (Refer Nore 16) 4,24979 2,664.41 1.791.66
Unsecured
() _From Related Party (Refer Note A below) 2 2,245.34 008
Total 10,810.60 (,488.48 4,423.36
(A) The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of working capital loans from banks are as below:
Nature of Security Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest As at 31st March 2025 | As ar 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
HDFC Bank .
The above credit facility is secured by way of following:
() It1s secured againstFirst PariPassu charge by way of hypothecation on INR 8{‘00‘0(‘) Lacs fF“"d based & Non fund based)
the entire current assets of the company, both present and future working capital facility obtained.
(ii) Second Pari Passu charge on entire movable fixed assets of the company,
both present and future
(i) First Pani passu charge on Land & Building of 61 B & C Udyog Vihar,
Greater Noida. 3,639.75 1,131.73 697.29
The: 2
(W) First Pari-passu charge on Industrial property located at Plot No SP-128, | '€ %€ repayable on demand
Industrial Area Ghiloth
(v) Negative Lein over land and buikling located at B-13 Sector 1 Eco tech
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt Lid.
crest - A 31.03. B.01%- 9.0% p.a.
) 6 Rifier dediired by wayaF Pisansl Guatintes ofthe dirscrsn, | reorinteret-Asion 31.03.2025:8.01%- 9,0% pi
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.
Bajrang Bothra
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
Yes Bunk .
The above credit facility is secured by way of following:
() Itix secured agninst first Pari Passu charge on by way of hypotheeation INR 5900 Lakhs (Fund baved & Non fund hasad) working
on all current ansets of the company (Both Present and Puture) eapital faclliy olstained
(i) Further secured against Second Pan passu charge by way of
hn)ﬂlhc(ﬂn(ll-\ on entire movable fixed assets of the company (Both 916,02 i1 937,39
Present and Future)
(i) Second Pan passu charge ny way of mortgage immovable property 3
located ar 61B-C Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida These are repayable on demand.
(iv) Negative Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1 Eco tech
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt Led,
() Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr. | Rate of Interest -As on 31.03.2025 : 8.00%-9.50% p.a.
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.
Bajrany Bothra .
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
Indusind Bank .
The above eredit facility 1s secured by way of following:
(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the VR 6000 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working
company (present and Future). capital facility obtained.
(i) Further secured agninst Second Pani passu charge on entire movable fixed
assets of the company
(i) Second Pari passu charge (equitable mortgage) on leasehold land and
0.47 91.95 (0.03)

Building loeated at 618-C Udhyop Vikar Greater Noida,
(iv) Second Pan pased thabie ovet mmovable firel soots logated e 8PA- 120
Ghitoth Indusirial Atea

Negative [ #in ovet land and building located st 8.13 Sectir 1 Heo teeh
Greater Noida (awned by Epack Prefab Sefutions Pyt Lesl,

(v

(vi) Iris further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr.
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.
Bajrang Bothra .

These are repayable on demand.

Race of Interest - As on 31.03,.2025 :10.75% p.a.




Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
Axis Bank .

The above credit facility is secured by way of following:

() Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on entire current assets of the
company (present and Future).

(i)  Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire movable
fixed assets of the company (Present and Future)

(i) Second Pari passu charge leasehold land and Building located at 61B-C

INR 4500 Lakhs (Fund based & Non fund based) working
capital facility obtained.

Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida 1,000.00 152 663.10
(iv) Second Pari passu charge over Leaschold Land and Building located at R EpRyBble ol dexriing]
SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area
(v) Negauve Lein over land and building located at B-13 Sector 1 Fco tech
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt Led.
(vi) Itis further secured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors My, |Rate of Interest - As on 31.03.2025 : B.75%-9.00% p.a.
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.
Bajrang Bothra
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
IDFC First Bank :
INR 750000 Lacs (Fund based & Non fund based)
The above credit facility 15 secured by way of following: working capital facility obtained.
() Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on current assets of the
company (Both Present and Future).
(ii)  Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on movable fixed assets
of the company
(1) Second Pari passis chatge Leaschold and and Building loeated at 618.C [asstopeyahle o demands
Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida,
(iv) Negative Lein on immovable property located at B-13 Sector 1 Eco tech
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt Led.
(v) Itis further sccured by way of Personal Guarantee of the dircctors Mr.  [Race of Interest - As on 31.03.2025 : 9.50% p.a.
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr,
Bajrang Bothra
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
ICICI Bank :
The above credit facility is sccured by way of following YR 10,0001 Aksis (Fand biged 82 No e i)
LAN, working capital facility obtained.
(i) Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on current assets (Stock and
Book debts) of the company.
(ii) Further secured against Second Pari passu charge on entire movable fixed
assets of the company
1,000.00
) T Goritier setiinad by wayoF Pemtan Guannme Gf tiedliscomMe. | 12 Wweirépuysbleion demand,
Sanay Singhanta, Me. Lasimi Pat Bothea, M. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr
Rajtang Bodien
AxHA A 295 . 8 38050 38 65
Cash Credit includes credit facility obtained by Holding Company from
Citi Bank :
The above credit facility is secured by way of following: by 4500,[4““ ('.' uind bisged & Non fihd beed) working
capital facility obtained
() Itis secured against first Pari Passu charge on current assets (Stock and
Book debts) of the company.
(if)  Further secured against Second Pan passu charge on entire movable fixed
assets of the company % "
(i) Second Pari passu charge Leaschold and and Building located at 61B-C s Kserepianle ds demmnd; 207 267.53 241.68

Udhyog Vihar Greater Noida.
(1v) Second Pani passu charge over Leasehold Land and Buidling located at
Plot No.SP5-128 Ghiloth Industrial Area
Negative Lein on immovable property located at B-13 Sector 1 Eco tech
Greater Noida (owned by Epack Prefab Solutions Pyt Ltd.
(vi) Itis further sccured by way of Personal Guarantee of the directors Mr.
Sanjay Singhania, Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra, Mr. Ajay DD Singhania and Mr.

(v)

Rate of Interest - As on 31.03.2025 : 9.50% p.a.

Hayrang Bothr,




(B

©

The details of rate of interest and nature of securities provided in respect of Commercial Credit Card from banks are as below:

Nature of Security Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at Ist April 2023
'C " ;. ” ;
HDFC Comercial Credit Card The HDFC Commercial Credit Card limic without Interest 161 77.80 9223
-These are repayable on demand
s C cial Credit Card li
Axis Comercial Credit Card The Axis Commercial Credit Card limit without Interest it
These are repayable on demand
The details of repayment terms, rate of interest, and nature of securities provided in respect of loans from related parties are as below:
Nature of Security |Repayment Terms and Rate of Interest As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024 As at 1st April 2023
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from  |Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate
1,092.39
Sanjay Singhania Repayable on demand
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obrained by Holding Company from  |Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate
Pinky Singhania Repayable on demand 005
Luwan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from  |Rate of Interest - 9% p a. Fixed Interest Rate
Awishi Singhania Repayable on demand
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from [ Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate
Amit Singhania Repayable on demand
Loan from Related Parues includes loan obtained by Holding Company from  |Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate
Preet Singhania Repayable on demand
Loan from Related Parties includes loan obtained by Holding Company from  [Rate of Interest - 9% p.a. Fixed Interest Rate Gisas

Ajay Singhania

Repayable on demand

i —

e

S
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OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 | As at 1st April 2023 '
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings §9.39 22.20 071
Payable for Property ,Plant and Equipment:

“To Others| 17.09 303.13 696.31
Employees Related Payables 113.96 136 66
Expenses Payable - 33.89 21.20

- To Related Parues

“To Employees Dues 783.41 563.26 33235
- To Others 340.72 13.06 21.16
Total 1,314.57 1,071.91 1,138.06 |

Short Term Provisions

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025

As at 31st March 2024

As at Ist April 2023

Provision for employee benefits

Grearity 52.82 100.752

Leave Encashment 65.27 407

Provision others pe

Provisions for Expenses 593.45 102,50 170.34
Total 711.54 243.09 170.34
Liability for Current Tax

Particulars As at 31st March 2025 | As at 31st March 2024 [ As at Isc April 2023

Provision for Income Tax 1,959.52 A15.06 814.51
Total 1,959.52 1,415.06 814.51

Other Current Liabilities

Particulars

As at 31st March 2025

As at 315t March 2024

As at Ist April 2023

Statutory Payable

10571

TDS Payable 121,49 79.11
TCS Payable 1.49 0.8 082
GST Payable 18744 2.3 205.48
181 Payable 6.99 5.05 in
Provident Pund Pavahle 70.4% 3.5 36.02
NPS Payable 0.12 0.66

Other Liabilties

Conract Liabthues (Advances from Customer)

- To Related Parties 30471 400.00
- To Others 6,663.63 1917 44 2,721.70
Tot 7214, 55743 3,542.45




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN -
Notes to C

U74999UP1999PLC116066

tlidated Fi i1 S
F

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
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29.

-

(a)

(b)

Revenue from Operations

for the year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Revenue from Contract with Customers
Revenue from Prefabricated Building Contracts

80,566.66 69,634.71
Sale of Goods:
1.Building Material 13,822.09 3,521.74
2. EPS Beads - =
(1) Manufactured goods (Net) 17,928.01 16,455.40
Other Operating Income 1,074.96 878.32
Total 1,13,391.72 90,490.17
Disaggregated Revenue Information
Type of Goods/ Services
Particulacs Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March

2025 2024

Revenue from Pre-Fabricated (Pre-Iingineered) Building Contracts 80,566.66 69,634.71
Sale of Building Materials 13,822.09 3,521.74
Revenue from Sale of goods (EPS Division) 17,928.01 16,455.40
Other Operating Income -
(i) Scrap 1,074.96 878.32
Total 1,13,391.72 90,490.17

Geographical Information

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024

Sale of Products and Services Comprises of:

Domestic Sales 1,13,140.30 90,056.23

Export Sales 251.42 433.95]

Total 1,13,391.72 90,490.17
Timing of Revenue Recognition
Sale of Building Materials transferred at a point of nme 32,825.06 20,855.47
Pre-fabricated Building Contracts and other services transferred over time 80,566.66 69,634.71
Total 1.13,30.72 90,490,17
Contract Balances
Trade Receivables (Refer Note 10) 20,533.26 12,052.83
Contract Liabilities (Refer Note 29) 6,663.63 5,222.55
Reconciliation of Revenue from Goods and Services with the Contracted Price
Contracted Price 1,13,419.36 90,660.12
Less: Control Transferred post reporting date (Net of Previous year) (27.64) (169.94)
Revenue Recognised 1,13,391.72 90,490.17




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK

POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to C lidated Fi ial S for the year ended 31st March 2025

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
30  Other Income

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Interest Income on Bank Deposit 325.58 129.70
Gain on foreign currency transaction 47.00 6.96
Provision/Laibilities Written Back 84.31 10.19
EPF Under PMRPY - 0.49
Gain on loss of significant Influence 200.00

Fair Value Gain of Mutual Funds 0.53 -
Total 657.42| 147.33

31  Cost of Materials Consumed

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Inventory at the beginning of the year 5,571.63 4,168.73
Purchases 65,318.99| 55,934.05
Less: Captive Consumption (1,245.83) -
Direct Expenses (Service Charges) 9,455.45 1,583.36
Job work charges 2,139.96 9,127.23
Total 81,240.20| 70,813.38
Less : laventory at the end of the year (5,484.15) (5,571.63)
Total 75,756.05 65,241.75

32 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Inventory at the end of the year
Finished goods R67.48 821.25
Wark in Process 7.936.56 6,590.19
Stocksinstrade - £
H704 05 741143
Inventory nt the begining of the yoar
Finished goods #21.25, 0657.13
Work in Process 6,590.19 2,778.68
Stock-in-trade &
7,41143 3,435.81
Total (1,292.61) (3,975.62)

33  Employee Benefits Expense

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

2025 2024
Salaries and wages, Bonus and other allowances 8,840.12 5,767.28
Contribution to provident funds, Family Pension and ESIC 607.00 396.25
Employee Stock Options Expense 30.19
Gratuity & Leave Encashment Expense (Refer Note 39) 102.34 62.42
Workmen and Staff welfare expenses 515.84 257.89
Total 10,095.50 6,483.85 |




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Cc
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34

35

36

Finance Costs

for the year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024

Interest and other borrowing cost on Borrowings from banks 2,037.36 1,372.91
Bank Charges 237.05 155.76
Net Interest on Net defined benefit liability 14.48 11.60
Interest expense - others 2.20 54.18
Hire charges 20.61 27.08
LC Discounting charges 65.13 81.38
Interest on lease liability 45.02] 35.30]
Interest on Statutory Payments 240 0.73
Interest on delay payment to MSME 0.44 0.24
Total 2,424.69 1,739.17

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

2025 2024
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 1,541.59 1,130.44
Depreciation on Investment Property g g
Amortization on Intangible assets 8.91 3
Amortization on Right of Use Assets 180.15 133.22
Total 1,730.65 1,266.77

Other Expenses

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

2025 2024

Consumption of Packing Material 387.53 262.79
Consumption of Stores & Spares 6,355.76 4.127.64
Power & Fuel Expenses 3,353.76 3,368.60
Rent Paid 178.80 207.09
Repair & Maintenance - Building 136.23 188.17
Repair & Maintenance - Plant & Machinery 490.17 293.76
Repair & Maintenance - Others 12.22 9.72
Rates & Taxes 16.44 0.47
Insurance 119.00 08,44
Freight & Cartage 3,383,03 3,437.03
Audit Fees - Statutory Audit 11.50 6.00
CSR Obligation H2L,70) 51,001
Travelling & Convevance A71.68 340,65
fadd Debts 14,14 35.67
Loss on Sale of Asser 0,70 11.60
Rejection & Breakage 11.48 18.61
Professional & Consultancy Charges 366.62 410,99

Expected Credit Loss 2743 44,70
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,628.19] 1,115.50
Total 17,053.39 14,028.42




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK

POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C lidated Fi ial § for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

37 Income Tax Expense

Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(i) Current Tax

Particulars

Year ended 31st March
2025

Year ended 31st March
2024

Current Tax on Taxable Income for the period/ year

1,960.70

1,416.86

Total Current Tax Expense

1,960.70

1,416.86

(ii)  Deferred Tax

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024
Deferred Tax Charge/(Credit) 151.85 134.75
MAT Credit (Taken)/Utlised 5
Total Deferred Income Tax Expense/(Benefit) 151.85 134.75

(iii)  Taxes in Respect of Earlier Years

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

Particul
e 2025 2024
Taxes in respect of carlier years 44.49
Total taxes in respect of earlier years 44.49 &
Tax expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income
Paitlculass Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March
2025 2024
Deferred Tax expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 11.25 3.26
through OCI
Income Tax Expense charged to OCI 11.25 3.26

to the c

37.1 A reconciliation of the income tax exf

1 by applying the statutory income

tax rate to the profit before income taxes is

Particulars

Year ended 31st March

Year ended 31st March

2025 2024

Restated Profit before tax 8,089.26 5,847.51
Income Tax Expenses Calculated at 25.168% 2,036.07 1,471.70
Effect of Income that is exempt from Tax (750.91) 3
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit /49,85 53.41
Effect of conssession (allowance)

Effect of Income taxed at Lower Rate of Tax

Effect of unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation on which deferred tax assets not recognized - :
Effect of Ind AS adjustments and Temporary difference 192,58 22.20
Effect of Consolidation Adjustments (1.96) 1.42
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current tax of prior years 44,49 .
Others .05 2.87
aeame 1y expenes ecopnlsed Inpenfitorloss = e R Y (1 ) IR | 17
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38

Earnings Per Share
Particilics Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March
- 2025 2024
(a)  Basic earnings per share (%)
From continuing operations (%) 7.65 5.54
From discontinued operations () 5 <
Total Basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Holding Group () 7.65 5.54
(b)  Diluted earnings per share ()
From continuing operations (%) 7:39 5.54
Total Diluted earings per share attributable to the owners of the Holding Group () 7.39 5.54
Footnotes:
The earnings and weighted average numbers of equity shares used in the calculaton of basic and diluted
earnings per share are as follows:
(a) Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share:
Profit for the year from continuing operations 593222 4,295.90
(b)  Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share:
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share 7,75,08,000.00 7,75,08,0(00.00
Ajustments for calculation of Diluted earnings per Share -
Weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of diluted earnings per share 8,02.20,807 48 7,75.08,000.00
(¢)  Face value of equity share (¥/share) 2.00 2,00
Nore:

The basic and diluted carning per share for the current period and previous periods presented have been calculated / restated ufter considering the shure splic and

s ietie in seeortdanee with the provislens of Ind AS 33 (Refer Nowe

174)




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND) EPACK
POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C lidated Fi; ial S for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amnunts are In INR Lavs unless otherwiee stated

39 Details of Employee Benefits
(A) Defined Contribution Plan

The Group has defined contribution plan in form of Provident Fund, Pension Scheme and Employee State Insurance Scheme for qualifying employeces. Urder the
Schemes, the Group is required to contribute a specified rates to fund the schemes

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024

Provident Fund 508.42 340.62

Employee State Insurance Scheme 98.59 55.63

Total 607.00 396.25
(B) Defined Benefit Plans

For defined benefits in the form of Gratuity the cost of providing benefits is d ined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuat ons being
carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains and Losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period which they occur.

The rearement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined beacfit obligation as adjusted or unreco znized past
service cost, as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the present value of available
refunds and reductions in future contributions 1o the schemes

(1) Post Employment Benefit

Salary for calculation of Gratuy Last drawn qualifying monthly salary as provided by the enterprise
Vesting Period 5 years of continuous service (Not applicable in case of death/disability)
Benefit on Normal retirement (15/26) x salary x number of years of completed service

Benefit on Early retirement Same as normal retirement benefit

Beneifit on death in service Same as normal retirement benefit except that no vesting conditions apply
Limit on amount of gratuity Maximum Gratuity is restricted to INR 20,00,000/-

The benefits are governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 or Group scheme rules, whichever is higher.

Aforesaid post-employment benefit plans typically expose the Group to tisks such as: actuarial risk, investment risk, liquidity risk, murket risk and
legislative risk.

(i) Acturial Risk
It1s the nisk that benefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
Adverse Salary Growth Experience
Variability in mortality rates
Variability in withdrawal rates

(ii) Investment Risk
For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the fair value of instrument backing the
linbility. In such cases,the present value of the assets is independent nf the future discount rate, This can result in wide fluctuntions in the net linhility or the
funded status if there are sipnifieant ehaspres in the deenunt s during e inveevaluaion e

(iii) Liquidity Risk
Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher in hierarchy, accumulate significant level of benefits.If some of such employees resign/retire
from the Group there can be strain on the cashflows.

(iv) Market Risk
Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets.One actuarial assumption that hzs a material
effect is the discount rate.
(v) Legislative Rsik
Legislative risk is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in the legislation/regulation. The government may amend
the Payment of Gratuity Act or Shop and Establishment Act thus requiring the companies to pay higher benefits to the employees.

=

There are no changes in the benefit scheme since the last valuation, There are no special events such as benefit improvements or curtailments or settlements during

the inter-valuation period.

The following tables summarise the components of defined benefit expense recogaised in the Starement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Inzome and the
f: tand amaants reeapeieed in the Coneolidated Balanee $heet fise the reapaotive pling

reles seat




Reconciliations

(a) Movements in the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligations
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 254.29 205.59
Current Service Cost 103.40 62.42
Interest Expense 18.05 15.01
Remeasurements - Actuarial (gains) / losses 4497 13.14
Benefits paid by the Group (24.82) (41.87)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end 395.89 254.29
(b) Movements in the fair value of the Plan Assets
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Opening fair value of plan assets 50.32 46.74
Interest Income 3.57 341
Remeasurements - Actuarial gains / (losses) 0.29 0.17
Contirbutions from Employer "
Benefits pard
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end of the period 54.18 50.32
(c) Service Cost
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Current Service Cost 103.40 62.42
Past Service Cost including curtailment gains/losses
Gains or Losses on non routine settlements . .
Total 103.40 62.42
(d) Net Interest Cost (Income)
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Interest Cost on Defined Benefit Obligation 18.05 15.01
Interest Income on Plan Assets 3:57 341
Net Interest Cost (Income) 14.48 11.60
(¢) R of the net defined benefit liability (asset) in other comprehensive income:
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (0.29) (0.17)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from ch in der b jon S
Actuanal (gains)/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 10.35 2.63
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience adjustments 34.62 10.51
Other (describe)
Adjustments for restrictions on the defined benefit asset - -
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 44.68 12.96
(f) The amounts to be recognized in the statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Service Cost 103.40 62.42
Net Interest Cost / (income) 14.48 11.60
Defined Benefit Cost recognized in statement of Profit or Loss 117.88 74.02
(g) The amount included in the Balance Sheet
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 318t March 2024
Pressitt vabue of definsd beiafie ahlieation 185 4% 38428
Fair value of plan assire 84,18 50,32
Funded starus (341.70) (203.96)
Restrictions on asset recognised - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation 341.70 203.96
(h) 1IN ion of the of Net Defined Benefit Obligation
Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Net defined benefit liability at the start of the period 203.96 158.85
Service Cost 103.40 62.42
Net Interest Cost (Income 14.48 11.60
Remeasurements 44.68 12.96
Contribution paid to the Fund - .
Benefits paid directly by the enterprise (24.82)
341.70

Net defined benefit liability at the end of the period




@

Plan Assets - Category wise description

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March 2024

GOI SECURITIES

PSU BONDS

STATE/CENTRAL GUARANTEED

SPECIAL DEPOSITS

PVT. SECTOR

ASSET INVESTED IN INSURANCE SCHEME WITH THE INSURER

The ptions used to d ine net periodic benefit cost are set out below:

Particulars Year ended 31st March 2025 | Year ended 31st March 2024
Discount Rate 6.60% 7.10% p.a

Salary Escalaton 5.00% p.a. 5.00% p.a.

Withdrawal Rates

All Ages -15% p.a

All Ages -15% p.a

Amount, timing and uncertainty of future cash flows

Sensitivity Analysis
Gratuity

Particulars

Year ended 31st March 2025

Year ended 31st March 2024

Discount Rate Sensitivity

(a) Defined benefit obligation 395.89 254.29
(b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Increase in Discount rate 375.70 241.64
(¢) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Decrease in Discount rate 418.23 268.25
(d) Decrease in Defined benefit obligauon due to 1% increase in discount rate. (a-b) 20.19 12.64
(e) Increase in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in discount rate. (c-a) 22.34 13.96
Salary growth rate Sensitivity
(a) Defined benefit obligation 395.89 254.29
(b) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Increase in Expected Salary Escalation rate 416.82 268.40
(¢) Defined benefit obligation at 1% Decrease in Expected Salary Escalation rate 376.56 241.29
(d) Decrease in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% increase in Expected Salary Escalation rate. (b- 2093 1411
)
(e) Increase in Defined benefit obligation due to 1% decrease in Expected Salary Escalation rate. (a-¢) 19.32 13.00
The Effect of the Plan on the Group’s Future Cash Flows
(i) The Description on funding arrang and funding policy
The defined benefit obligation (Gratuity) is funded through Life i Corp of India.
(iii) The Maturity Profile of Undiscounted Defined Benefit Obligation
Gratuity
" Y ded 31st March 2025
Particulars Ll L s Year ended 31st March 2024
The Weighted Average Duration (Years) as at valuation date 8 Years 8 Years
Year | Cashflow 52.97 35.16
Year 2 Cashflow 50.66 33.06
Year 3 Cashflow 46.34 3397
Year 4 Cashflow 47.30 32.16
Year 5 Cashflow 55.59 31.69
Year 6 ro 10 Cashflow 350.31 231.58
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

(Formerly known as Epack Prefab Technologies Private Limited and Epack Polymers Private Limited)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066
Notes to C lidated Fi ial S for the year ended 31st March 2025

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

43 Related Party Disclosures

(A) The list of related parties as identified by the Management is as under:

Nature of Relationship

Name of Related Party

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Mr. Sanjay Singhania (Managing Director & Chief Executve Officer)

Mr. Ajay Singhania (Non Executive Director)

Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra (Ceased wef 28.10.2024)

Mr. Bajrang Bothra (Chairman & Non Executive Director)

Mr. Devki Nandan Pareek (Ceased wef 28.10.2024)

Mr. Pradeep Pradhan (Ceased wef 28.10.2024)

Mr. Nikhel Bothra (Whole Time Director)

Ms. Nikita Singh (Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) wef 14.10.2024
Mr. Rahul Agarwal (Chief Financial Officer) wef 11.11.2024

Ms. M: i jan (Ind lent Director) wef 20.12.2024
Mr. Ram Grovher (Independent Director) wef 20.12.2024

Mr. Dharamchand Jain (Independent Director) wef 20.12.2024
Mr. Manuj Aggarwal (Independent Director) wef 20.12.2024

Mr. Bipin Garg (Independent Director) wef 20.12.2024

Mr. Krishnan Ganesan (Nominee Director) wef 20.12.2024

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel

Mrs, Preity Singhani
Mrs, Pinky Ajay Singhania
Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra
Mrs. Suman Bothra
Mr. Amit Singhania
Ms. Divisha Singhamia
Ms. Drishika Singhania
Ms. Avishi Singhania
Mrs. Madhu Agarwal
Mrs. Anju Singhania
Ms. Anishka Singhanin
Me. Nitin Bothiny

Me. Rojlar Bothea

Ma Arshts Snghania
Ms. Araanya Singhania

1/ Rel

Enterprise under Control or Enterprise over which Key Manag P
Key Managerial Personnel have Significant Influence

of

Epack Component Private Limited (Formerly Known as E-Duraoles), amalgamation in Epack
Ennov Techno Tools Private Limited
EPACK Durable Limited

Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited
East India Technologies Private Limited
Epack Petrochem Solutions Pyt Ltd.

East India Auto Traders Private Limited
Decent Softtech Private Limited

Mool Chand Eatables Private Limited
Epack New Age Solutions Limited

Epavo Electricals Pvt. Ltd,

PHD Chamber of Commercce and Industry
Sanjay Preity Singhania Trust

Subsidi A i
y and Comp

Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited (Formerly Kiiown as Epac I: Buildeon Private Limited)
(Wholly Owned Subsidairy)

Epack Petrochem Solutions Private Limited (Formerly known as E Durables Electronics Pyt
Ltd,) (Subsidiary till 16th January 2023 , then it becomes Associate company) (Ceased wef

30.09.2024)




(B) Transactions and Balances as at and for the years ended 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2025

(I) Details of transactions with related parties (in accordance with Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures)

Amount in Lacs

Nature of Transaction

Year ended 31st March

‘Year ended 31st March

Name of Related Party 2025 2024
(a) _Transactions with Key Managerial Personnel and Directors *:
Salary 13¢50 37.12
TDS deducted on Salary 27.58
Advance Given -
Reimbursement of Expenses 3892 -
(i)  Mr. Sanjay Singhania Loan Received 1,475.00
Loan repaid 1,092.39 332,601
TDS deducted (.58 1.50
Interest Paid £.26 13.53
Interest Credited 5.84 15.03
Salary 4.00 6.00
TDS deducted 16 0.24
Loan Received 1,425.00
. T Loan repaid 1,152.99 272
G e Algyothehans Taterest Paid 1343
Reimbursement of Expenses 15.88
Interest Credited 37.33 14.92
TDS deducted 323 1.49
Salary 3700 59.00
TDS deducted on Salary 21.90
- Reimbursement of Expenses 2,86
(iii)  Mr. Laxmi Pat Bothra Rent Paid €00 12.00
TDS deducted on Rent Paid .80 1.20
Security Refund 5(.00 75.00
Salary 77.50 138.00
(v)  Mr. Bajrang Bothra Reimbursement of Expenses 298
TDS deducted 32.35 17.40
Rent Paid 200 12.00
'TDS deducted (.80 1.20
Security Refund 50.00 75.00
Reimbursement of Expenses 14.19
(v)  Mrs. Presty Singhania Loan Received 200.00
Loan Repaid 200.00
Interest Credited .58
'TDS deducted 1.26
Interest Paid 532
Commusion Paid
'TDS deducted
(vi) Mr. Deendayal Singhania ericikin
Loan repaid
Rent Paid £00 12.00
TDS deducted (.80 1.20
Loan Received
Loan Repaid
e " Interest paid
()t MesRinleySlophadin Re:mbur‘:m the expenses made 70.00
Eapenses paid to be Reimbursed 14.65 .59
Security Refund 5C.00 75.00
Interest Credited .
'TDS deducted
Consultuney expenses -
Salary 929 59.94
(viti) Mr. Nikhel Bothra 'TDS deducted 2295
Expenses paid to be Reimbursed 2857 19.22
Interest received -
Loan Received 2100
Interest Credited 281 4.67
(ix)  Mr. Amit Singhania TDS deducted (.28 0.47
Loan Repaid 71.22 11.73
Interest Paid 253 421
Salary paid 161
Loan Received
Loan Repaid
Interest Paid
(x)  Ms. Divisha Singhania Reimbursement of Expenses .04
Interest credited
TDS deducted
Consultancy
'TDS deducted .
Loan Received 10.00
Loan Repaid .19 1037




Interest Paid

(xi) Ms. Drishika Singhania ;ygsw;::::l::d 3:;)3
Reimbursement of Expenses .04
Consultancy Charges - 16.44
[TDS deducted on consultancy charges 1.64
Loan Received 27.50
Loan Repaid 82.58 15.00
Interest Paid 297 7.40
(xti)  Ms. Avishi Singhania Reimbursement of Expenses 265
Interest Credited 2.30 8.22
'TDS deducted €33 0.82
Ci i - .
Rent Paid £.00 12.00
(xili) Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra 'T‘,:)"S":::;':‘:‘;" of Experitas '{:;“‘; -
Security Refund 50.00 75.00
N 3 17
(xiv) Mrs. Suman Bothra (l:;nss:l:j::{j“ Ii(S,(S) )2300
Loan Received 2000
Loan repaid 9:.30 =
(xv) Mrs. Anju Singhania Interest Paid 230 572
Interest Credited 166 5.75
TDS deducted (37 0.58
Loan Receved -
Loan repaid 4449 -
(xvi) Ms. Anishka Singhania Interest Paid 1.7 352
Interest Credited 1.90 392
TDS deducted (119 0.39
Loan Received - 35.00
Loan Repaid 82.69 3.00
(xvii) Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Interest Paid .58 -
Interest Credited 287 0.77
'TDS deducted (.29 0.08
Salary, Leave, Bonus, ete £.82 15.68
(svii) Mr. Devki Nandan Pareek Rf::::ﬁffﬁ?:ﬁf:ﬁﬁ : vi _
TDS Deducted (.95 1.62
(x1x) Mr. Pradeep Pradhan :.ag;’l')::::;:“nus' £ :‘:Z lg,:)x]'
(xx) _Mr. Nitin Bothra Reimt: of Expenses 12.61
(xxi) Mr. Rajjat Bothra Reimbursement of Expenses 1538
(xx11) Ms. Arshia Singhnia Reimbursement of Expenses 2.65
(xxii) Ms. Araanya Singhnia Reimb of Exp 2.65
(xxiv) Mr. Manuj Agarwal Director Sitting fees (.45
(xxv) Mr. Manorama Nagarajan Director Situng fees (.45
(xxvi) Mr. Ram Grovher Director Sitting fres (.45
» 9 Salary paid 269
(xxvii) Mr. Rahul Agarwal iy M of Exp .46
G Salary paid £.47
(xxviii) Ms. Nikita Singh 5 . of Bxp €23
(b) T ions with enterprises under control or rises over which Key Managerial P I have signifi
(i)  Epack Component Private Limited ( Formerly Known as E-Durables) Sle or goods/Service G52 12
Purchase of goods . -
(if) _Ennov Techno Tools Pyt. Ltd. Expenses Paid to be reimbursed 0.27 1.15
Tﬁﬁw—‘ 371625 153729
Lauan given
Loan repaid
Epack Durable Limited (formerly known as Epack Durable Sol Reimb of Exy 438
(ii Private Limited) Interest received -
Purchase of goods 10.48
Sale of Land Rights s
Rent Paid - 19.86
Purchase of Goods 224.12 874.06
Sale of Goods 3,750.03 297372
(iv) East India Technologies Pyt Ltd ;::::t;:l::;::;fflixpcnst —_— :
'TDS Receivable 479 6.06
Expenses Reimt 4.78 11.04
(v) _East India Auto Trader Pvt Lid Purchase of Goods/Service . 7.56
(vi) Decent Softech Peivate Limited Sale of(:(x)ds/Scwch 1,814.38 l,df] 85
Reimbursement of Expenses pad 59.78 1.19
(vii) Mool Chand Eatables Pyt, Ltd. Festival Expenses / Staff Welfare Expenses 37.84 9.20
.. Epack New Age Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Epack Reimburesement of Expenses €61
(i)
Prefabricated Limited)
(ix) Epavo Electricals Private Limited Sale of Goods & Services 1,846.49
Subscnption fee 1.20
(x)  PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry TDS on Subscription fee

SONRpS—— 1T, X T I




an

Loan received 500.00
Loan repaid 500.00
(xi)  Sanjay Preity Singhania Trust Interest Paid 1£.06
Interest Credited 1¢.73
TDS On Interest 1.67
@ T ions with Subsidiary and A iate Comp
: Epack Prefab Solutions Private Limited( Formerly known as Raksha Rent Expensc 1£.00 18.00
9 Finplate Pvt. Lid) TDS Deducted 1.50 1.80
Advanced against Supply 1,351.86
Unsecured Loan given @ 9% p.a 400.00 .
Investment in Equity Shares
. Interest on unsecured Loan 1€.16
(i E];;::c[l:ol:-cr:o;::-:r\(:()ﬂununs Pyt Ltd. (Formerly Known as E-Durables Sale of Goods/Services 1.981.17 141012
g i o Purchase of Goods 3,304.55
Advance received against GIDC Plant Construction Order
Advance (Reimbursement ) received back -
Advances against supply received back 951.00
Details of balances with related parties (in accordance with Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures)
Amount in Lacs
Year ended 31st March | Year ended 31st March
Name of Related Party Nature of Transaction 2025 2024
Bal, with Key Managerial P 1
Salary Payable £.82 4.96
(i) Mr. Sanjay Singhania Loan / Interest Payable 1,092.39
Reiml of Exp (Receivable) 5.35
Salary Payable 0.48
Reimk I bl
(i)  Mr. Ajay Singhania Advance Rcc:;\\r:::yflc‘ . ® e 1
Loan / Interest Payable 1,152.99
Salary Payable 3.09
Rent payable 0.90
(i) Mr. Laxrm Pat Bothra Reiml: of E (R ble)
Advances Receivable
Security Deposit Given 50.00
Advance /Reimbursement of Expenses Receivable -
(iv)  Mr. Bayrang Bothra Director salary Payable 5.80
Loan Receivable
Rent Outstanding 0.29
(v)  Mrs. Pretty Singhania i.icer\buncmcm uf Expenses (Recewable) )
Secunty deposit Given 50.00
Loan / Interest Payable
Loan / Interest payable
(i), Mirs Pinky Singhania Expenses to be rc.ifnbulscd ‘LSJ
Security deposit Given 50.00
Rent payable
Expenses to be reirnbursed 287
(vii)  Mr. Nikhel Bothra Consultancy Payable - -
Salary Payable 6.15 12.97
(viti) Mr. Amit Singhania Loan / Interest payable 50.22
loan / Interest payable 2
(x)  Ms. Divisha Singhania Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable)
Salary Payable 1.32
@ Ms. Drishiks Sinaiaia Loan / Interest I’zya_hl: 0.19
Reim o (Receivable)
(xi)  Ms. Avishi Singhania L’“ml/ Lagersss pny:hle ¢ gas B2.58
of Exp (¥
Rent payable
(xt1) Mrs. Leela Devi Bothra Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable)
Secunity deposit Given 50.00
(xu1) Mrs. Suman Bothra C Itancy Fee payable 5.40
(xiv) Mrs. Anju Singhania Loan / Interest payable 92.30
(xv) Ms. Anishka Singhania Loan / Interest payable 19.49
(xvi)) Mr. Devki Nandan Pareck Salary Payable 1.20
Salary Payable 0.98
(e Advance against Salary (Recoverable) 1.44 1.44
(xviii) Mrs. Madhu Agarwal Loan / Interest payable 32.69
(xx) Mr. Nitin Bothra Reimt ment of Expenses (Receivable)
(xx1) Mr.Rajjat Bothra Reimb of Exp (Receivable)
(xx1) Ms. Arshia Singhania Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable)
(xxiii) Ms. Araanva Singhania Reimbursement of Expenses (Receivable) .
Reimk 3 o
(xxav) Mr. Rahul Agarwal Salary Payable of Expenses (R :(;3
(xxv) Ms. Nikita Singh Salary Payable 129
(xxvi) Mr. Manuj Agarwal Amount Receivable .05
(xxvu) Mr. Manorama Nagarajan Amount Receivable C.05




(xxvii) Mr. Ram Grovher [Amount Receivable €05 ]
(b)  Balances with enterprises under control or enterprises over which Key M: ial Py 1 have signifi
(i)  Epack Component Private Limited ( Formerly Known as E-Durables) [Trade Receivable 0.44
(i) Ennov Techno Tools Pvt. Ltd. 5::;:::2:‘:::[ EApERIE peid Ger
imi erly | Sc :
(i) Epack Df:n‘blc Limited (formerly known as Epack Durable Solutions Trade Receivable (Net) 552.5 818.36
Private Limited)
(iv) _ East India Technologies Pvt. Ltd. Trade Receivable (Net) 552.77 943.27
(v) _ East India Auto Trader Pyt Ltd Trade Payable 1.96 1.96
()  DecetiySofiech Private Limiad Advance from Customer ( For Sale) 394.71
Trade Receivables 797.32
(vii) Mool Chand Eatables Pvt. Ltd. Amount Payable 10.29 .49
(viii) _Ennov Infra Solutions Pvt. Ltd. Advance Receivable
Epack New Age Solutions Limited (Formerly known as Epack ¥
(1x) Prefubocated Lismited) Reimbursement of Expenses (Recervable) .61
(x)  Epavo Electricals Private Limited Amount Receivable 56C.45
(xi) PHD Chamber of Commerce and Industry Amount Receivable (.49
(c) Bal with Subsidiary and Associate Company:
.. Epack Prefab Solutons Private Limited( Formerly known as Raksha SecuiityDepoals Given 22629 22629
(0] Investrment in Share 303.79 303.79
Tinplate Pvt. Ltd.) .
Rent Payable 9F.34 36.40
Advance from Customer ( For Sale) -
Unsecured Loan Given @ 9% 41€.16
i) Epack Petrochem Solutions Pyt Ltd. (Formerly Known as E-Durables | Trade Payable 391.33
Electronics Pyt Lid.) Advanced against Supply 60C.00 400.86
Investment in Share 20C.00 200.00
Trade Recervable 6€.08 150.00




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999U P1999PLC116066
Notes to Cons ated Financial Statement the year ended 31st March 2025
Al amotmts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

44 Segment Reporting

® An operting toguient i s commponeot of the Compay that cagages I bskieis ctvids fooms whichic may eam cevenies and incue expenses, whose operating results ace regulady reviewed by the Cluef Operating Decision Maker (“CODM®) to aiske decisions foe which
discrete fimancial information is available. The Company identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and retuns and the itemal organisation and management structure and for which Aiscrete fisncial nformation is available The CODA!
monitons the operating results of the seguents (ot the purpose of making decisions sbout resource allocation and performance assessment. The Company prepares ts segment information in conformity with the accounting policie adopted foe preparing and preseating the

financial statements of the Company 3 3 whole

The Executive Directors, Chief Execuive Officer and Chief Financial Offices are the Chief Operating Deciion Maker (CODM) and monitors the operating results of ts business wmits sepacately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and

peeformance msessment

” d Sl

@ Thie upersting segment lias beeu identified snd reposted taking into scconat its intemsl finmcial seporting
decision maker under Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments” The Company has two key business segment of activity, namely “EPS (Expanded Polystyrenc)
covered under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 108 on operating segments,

s operations. Operating segment i eporied in the manner evaluated by board, considered a3 chief upeesting
Packaging” and “Pre-cngineered and Pretabricated Bulding Solutions”, i sccordance wth the defintion of “Segment”

() EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging: The Company is recognized as voe of the largest manufacturer of EPS (Expanded Pulystycene) packaging i lidia. 1ts products serve a wide tange of indvstrie, inchuding consumer eletrunics, spplsnces, and cold sorage. The

EPS products are mumtactured with 2 lugh degeee of precision, enswring quality and compliance with mdustry standards.

®) Pre-cngincered and Prefubricated Building Solutions: The Company has grown into s significant playerin the pre-engncered and prefsbricated buldings (PEB) segment, providing solutions for industaal, commercial, and reswdential sectors The Company also
I ustrial d st

specializes in prefabricated md pre-cngmeered building sohitions, offering cverything from light-gauge steel framing (LGSF) to fully fabrcated steel structures ts
rediiced construction time

1 Segment ERITDA and Profit / (Loss) are 2s under:

projects, ensuring high durability, cost efficiency, sud

Amount in Lacs

A at 31at March 2025 Ax at 31at March 2021
Particulars EPS (Expanded Py snpivested awd EPS (Expanded
. . | Prefabricated Building Unallocated Total S s Unallocated Total
Polystyrene) Packaging o Polystyrene) Packaging
olutions
Profit/ (Loas) After Tax 750.41 5,167.25 57 593222 202.8% 2 4,295.90
Tax l{xpmm 51732 1,636 62 309 2,1570% 24273 1,305 35 354 1,55162
Protit/ (Loss) betore Tax 1,262.73 6,803.87 1765 B,089.26 445.60 5,396.18 57 584751
Other lucome (5369), (403.77)] (200 00) (657.42)) 517 (14216) (147 3)]
Exceptional income / (expenses) (Ne() - - 19223 19223 - - 566 566
on and amortization expense 611.20 111687 288 173065 53667 72753 258 126077
Fuance cost 27809 214311 349 424 69 24085 1,494 85 346 173917
ERITDA 2,103.3% 9,660.08 15.94 11,779.40 121794 7,476.40 17.43 BT
2 Segment revenue:
Segment Revenue and reconciliation of the same with total revenue as follows:
Amount in Lacs
Vear ended Slat March 2025 Vear cnded 31at March 2024
Particulars Tnter- Segment | Revenue From Extemal Tnter - Segment Revenue From
Segment Revenue v Pkl Segment Reveaue Fithnan Froagypmiiand|
Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions 9532313 - 9532313 7378426 73,784.26
EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging 18,068.59 18,068 59 16,705.91 16,7059
Total Revenue 1,13,391.72 - 1,13,991.72 90,490.17 B 90,490.17
 The Company's operations are located in I e India. The amount of its reveaue from external customers analysed by the country in which customers are located irrespective of origin of the goods or services are
given below:
Amount in Lacs
et akins Year cnded 3at March | Year cnded 31ac
2025 March 2024
Within Indin 1,13,13030 90,056.23
Outside India 25142 43395
[ Toral Revenue L13,391.72 90,490.17
4 Segment Avsets and Lisbilities and reconciliation of the same with total avsets and total lisbilities are as follows:
Amount in Lace
A at 30nt March 2055 As 4t S1at March 2021
; 2 _ Pre-engincered and
Particulars EPS (Expanded EPS (Expanded -
) g 22
Fibunyreny Poskghog Unallocated Total Pitysiyesns) Pasknging F'd'-b;::cl Building|  Unallocated Toul
Seganent Assets. 15461 66 77,339 06 31 51 93,102.24 1061528 50,464 89 29202 61,372.17
Segment Lisbibities 4480 41 32,856 91 218 §7,709.50 381915 40,287 82 369 49 44,476.46

There was 1o customer generating Sales morethau 10% of Revenue as on 31032025 and 31.03.2024
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB
TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PLC116066

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated
47A Additional Statutory Information - Ratios:

(a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

% Change from previous year

Reesinn 2025 2024
Current Assets 61,625.47 37,303.52
Current Liabilities 43,518.79 33,345.39
Ratio (Times) 1.42 112
26.58 -

Reason for change more than 25% -

Current Assets are increased vis-a-vis Current Liability on account of Growth in Trade Receivables, Cash and Bank Balances.

(b) Debt Equity Ratio = Total Debt divided by Total Equity

Amount in Lacs

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024

Total Debt 21,023.12 14,531.17
Total Equity 35,392.74 16,895.71
Less: Non - Controlling Interests £ =
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Holding Group 35,392.74 16,895.71
Ratio (Times) 0.59 0.86
% Change from previous year (30.93) -

Reason for change more than 25% -

The significant increase in equity relative to debt sharply decreased the Debt-to-Equity ratio, indicating reduced reliance on borrowed

funds and improved financial stability.

(c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio = Earnings available for servicing debt divided by total interest and principal repayments

As at 31st March

Pt As at 31st March
: 2025 2024

Profit before tax 8,089.26 5,847.51
Add: Depreciation 1,730.65 1,266.77
Add: Finance Cost . 2,424.69 1,739.17
Adjusted Profit 12,244.59 8,853.45
Interest cost on borrwings 1,107.96 671.07
Principal repayments 3,321.91 1,791.66
Total of Interest and Principal Repayments 4,429.87 2,462.73
Ratio (Times) 2.76 3.59
% Change from previous year (23.11) -
Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable
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Return on Equity Ratio = Profit after tax divided by Average Equity

Amount in Lacs

L As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024

Profit after tax 5,932.22 4,295.90
Less: Share of Profit /(Loss) of minority interest - -
Consolidated Net Profit after tax, for the year/period attributable to equity 5,932.22 4,295.90
sharcholders
Total Equity 35,302.74 16,895.71
Less: Non - Controlling Interests - -
Equity attributable to the Owners of the Holding Company 35,392.74 16,895.71
Average Shareholder's Equity ** 26,144.23 14,752.62
Ratio (%) 22.69 29.12
% Change from previous year (22.08) -

Return on Equity is computed by considering Average Sharcholder's fund for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio = Credit Sales divided by Average Trade Receivables

Amount in Lacs

o As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
Revenue from Operations 1,13,391.72 90,490.17
Average Trade Recetvables** 16,593.04 12,333.97
Ratio (Times) 6.83 7.34
%o Change from previous year (6.86) -

Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio is computed by considering Average Trade Receivables for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio = Credit Purchases divided by Average Trade Payables

Amount in Lacs

Particulars

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

2025 2024
Credit Purchases 65,318.99 55,934.05
Average Trade Payables** 19,843.91 15,391.92
Ratio (Times) 3.29 3.63
% Change from previous year (9.42) -

Trade Payables Turnover Ratio is computed by considering Average Trade Payables for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable




(2) Inventory Turnover Ratio = Cost of Goods Sold divided by Average Inventory

. As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2025 2024
Cost of Goods Sold 74,463.43 61,266.13
Average Tnventory** 14,466.54 10,979.95
Ratio (Times) 5.15 5.58
% Change from previous yecar (7.75) -

¥k Inventory Turnover Ratio is computed by considering Average Inventory for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.
Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable
(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio = Sales divided by Average Working Capital
Surrioulae As at 31st March As at 31st March
PSS 2025 2024
Revenue from Operations 1,13,391.72 90,490.17
Average Working Capital** 11,032.40 3,875.87
Ratio (Times) 10.28 23.35
% Change from previous year (55.98) -
*%  Net Capital Turnover Ratio is computed by considering Average Working Capital for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.
Reason for change more than 25% -
Excessive growth in average working capital, far exceeding revenue growth, caused a sharp decline in the Working Capital Turnover Ratio.
(i) Net Profit Ratio = Restated Profit after Tax divided by Total Income
Amount in Lacs
Barticulats As at 31st March As at 31st March
2025 2024
Profit after Tax 5,932.22 4,295.90
Total Income 1,14,049.14 90,637.51
Ratio (%) 5.20 4.74
%> Change from previous year 9.74

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable
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() Return on Capital Employed = Adjusted EBIT/ Total Capital Employed

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars 2025 2024

Profit before Tax 8,089.26 5,847.51
Add: Finance Cost 2,424.69 1,739.17
Less: Other Income (657.42) (147.33)
(Add) / Less: Share of (Profit) / Loss of Associate Co. 192.23 5.66
Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 10,048.75 7,445.00
Net Worth 35,392.74 16,895.71
Total Debt 21,023.12 14,531.17
Total Capital Employed 56,415.86 31,426.89
Average Total Capital Employed ** 43,921.37 27,314.84
Ratio (%) 22.88 27.26
% Change from previous year (16.06) -

** Return on Capital employed is computed by considering Average Total Capital Employed for FY 2024-25 and FY 2023-24.

Reason for change more than 25% - Not applicable




EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACK POLYMERS PRIVATE LIMITED)

CIN - U74999UP1999PL.C116066
Notes to C lidated Financial S for the year ended 31st March 2025
All amounts are in INR Lacs unless otherwise stated

52 Other Statutory Information
1) The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding have been initiated or pending aganst the Group for holding any Benami property.
(1) The ntle deeds of all the iImmovable properties, (other than immaovable properties relanng to Right of use assets where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly exezuted in favour of the Group)
(m) The Group did not have any transactions with Companies struck off.

() The Group does not have any charges or satsfaction which 15 yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(v)  The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the respective financial ye:

(v1) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any person(s) or ennity(ies), including foreign entities (1 el with the und hing that the Intermeduary shal:
(@) Darectly or mdirectly lend or invest i other person or entines wennficd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group (Ulimate Beneficianes) or

(b)  Provide any guarantee, secunty o the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vn) The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entibes (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall;
(x)  Directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather person or entities idennfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ulnmate Beneficanes) or
security or the like on behalf of the Ulumate Beneficianes

(b)  Provide any guarantee,
(v} The Group does not have any transaction which 1s not recorded i the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments uader the Income Tas Act, 1961 (such
(1x)  None of the Group ennties have been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authonty
() The Group has comphed with the number of layers prescnbed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Compantes (Restnctions on Number of Layers) Rules, 2017.
53 Social Security Code

The Code on Socul Security, 2020 (‘Code’) relating to employee benefits dunng empl and post employ benetits recaved Presidential assent i September 2020, The Code has been published i the Ga
India. However, the date on which the Code will come into effect has not been notified and the final rules / interpretation have not yet been 1ssued. The Group will assess the impact of the Code when 1t come mito eff,
will recard any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the Group believes the impact of the change will not be sgmificant.

54 The subsidiary Epack Prefab Solutions Privare Limited has a neganve net worth as of 31st March 2025. The negative net worth amounts to INR 70.67 Lacs . The financial statements of the subsid ary have heen prepared on a
ssary financial and operanonal support. This situation does not affect the overall solvency or operatons o the Group. The substanil part of

gong concern basis as the parent company has committed to providing the ne
the labilities of the subsidhary 15 towards its Holdng Company only. The management of the Parent Company does not see any financial cnisis on the subsidiary.

ack Prefab Solutions Private Limuted has a neganve net worth as of 31st March, 2024. The negative net worth amounts to INR 77.46 Lacs . The financial statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on a
gomng concern basis as the parent company has committed to providing the necessary financial and operational support. This situation does not affect the overall solvency or operanons o the Group. The substantal part of
the liabilinies of the subsidiary 1s towards its Holding Company only. The management of the Parent Company does not see any financial crisis on the subsidiary.

The subsidhary E,

The subsidiary Epack Prefab Solunons Private Limited has a negative net worth as of 31st March, 2023, The negatve net worth amounts to INR 85.31 Lacs . The financial statements of the subsirdiary have been prepared on a
going concern basis as the parent company has committed to providing the necessary financial and operational support. This situation does not affect the overall solvency or operations o the Group. The substannal part of
cnsis on the subsidiary.

the liabihities of the subsidiary 15 towards its Holding Company only. The management of the Parent Company does not see any financia

k Prefab Solutions Private Limited and Fpack Petrochem Solutions Prvate Limited have a neganve net worth as of 31st March, 2022, The negative net worth amour ts 1o INR 93.15 Lacs and INR 16.96
Lacs respectively. The financil statements of the subsidiary have been prepared on a going concern basis as the parent company has committed to providing the necessary financal and operanonal support. This situation does

notatfect the overall solvency or operations of the Group. The substartial part of the labilities of the subsidianes s towrads its Holding Company only. The management of the Parent Company does not see any financial

The subsidianes E,

crsis on the subsidianes

55 Events after Balance Sheet Date
() There are no events that occurred after the Balance Sheet date that require adjustment or disclosure in the Ind AS Consoldated Financial Statements.
56 “The previous year's figures have been regrouped/reclassified wh « i sary to make them comparable with those of current penod's classificanon.

As per our Report of even date
For Talati & Talati LLP

For and on behalf of Boa ole" tors
For EPACK PRE, INOLOGIES LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS EPACK
PREFAB TFC OGHES PRIVATE LIMITED AND EPACE POLYMERS PRIVATE

.ﬂ\g\n @}D”ﬁ
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SQ jay Singhania Mr. Nikhil Bothra

Partner aging Director & CEf Director

Membership No. 043011 DIN: 01291342 [IN: 00129286
Place: Noida Place: Nowda

Place : M bw
Date : a‘na 0'-" *‘4’ S0 a2y Date: 3“13 04‘“",20;(‘ Date: 3“% oq‘%lﬂbﬂs_

Mr. Rahul Agarwal Mrs. Nikita Singh

Chief Financial Officer Company Secreraty &

Compliance Officer

Place: Nowda Place: Noida

Date: 3‘% o}ﬂllblf Date: 'j'ui” 0:,,,‘“' 20285
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EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (Formetly known as Epack Polymers
Private Limited)

CIN - U74999UP1999P'L C116066

Notes to Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended on 31* March 2025:

Corporate information:

EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED (formerly known as “EPACK POLYMERS
PRIVATE LIMITED”) having CIN U74999UP1999PTC116066 is a public unlisted company incorporazed
in India. The registered office of the Holding Company is located at 61-B, Udyog Vihar Surajpur, Kasna
Road, Gautam Buddha Nagar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh, India - 201306.

The Holding Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of EPS (Expanded Polystyreae)
Packaging and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions.

The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statement is prepared for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
and associate together referred to as the (the “Group”).

The Holding Company, its subsidiary (jointly referred to as the 'Group' herein under) and it's associate are
considered in these Ind AS Consolidated Financial Information. The Holding Company has conver-ed
from a Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company, pursuant to a resolution of shareholders
passed in the extraordinary general meeting of the sharcholders of the Company held on December 04,
2024 and consequently the name of the Company has changed to Epack Prefab Technologies Limited vide
Certificate issued by ROC on December 11, 2024.

% of Holding as at .
1:1:;:;‘;° 31" March | 31 March | 31 March Incc‘;‘;’;z::n l::;:,‘:;‘ .
2025 2024 2023
Epack Prefab
Solutions Private 100% 100% 100% India
Limited
Manufacturing of
Epack Petrochem 100% (till I'-.lf:ctmmcs
; . . Goods &
Solutions Private ) - January 16, India Copenedl, EPS
Limited 2023) ) . e
Resin and its
finished products
Interest in
associate
Manufacturing of
Spuck Penecheg, (10(;(/): :pto Eéc;fdt:mas:s
Solutions Private 9.00% 40% a6 India Com : _‘ EPS
Limi(ed (1&2) ! s o p(m(_nt, ¥ o
2023) Resin and its
finished products

Note:
1. As at January 16, 2023, the holding of Parent Company Epack Prefab Technologies Limited into
Epack Petrochem Solution Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has been reduced from earlier
100 % to 40 %, due to change in Share Holding of Epack Petrochem Solution Private Limited.
Consequently, with effect from January 16, 2023, Epack Petrochem Solution Private Limited
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12

ceased to be subsidiary company (i.e. Loss of Control) of Epack Prefab Technologies Limited but
having significant influence as on January 16, 2023 (i.e. holding of 40%) becomes its Associate
Company wef January 16, 2023.

2. As at September 30, 2024, the holding of Parent Company Epack Prefab Technologies Lirnited
into Epack Petrochem Solution Private Limited (Associate Company) has been reduced from
earlier 40 % to 9.09 %, due to change in Share Holding of Epack Petrochem Solution Private
Limited. Consequently, with effect from September 30, 2024, Epack Petrochem Solution Private
Limited ceased to be an Associate company (i.e. Loss of Significance Influence) of Epack Prefab
Technologies Limited.

Summary of basis of compliance, basis of preparation & measurement, key accounting estimates
& judgements and material accounting policies:

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Ind AS
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Basis of compliance:

The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
(as amended).

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company prepared its
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 {(Indian
GAAP).

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are the first the Company has
prepared in accordance with Ind AS (i.e. First Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements).

The date of transition to Ind AS is April 01, 2023. Refer Note 1A for the details of first-time adopton
exemptions availed by the Group. In accordance with Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of Indian
Accounting Standard, the Group has presented a reconciliation from the presentation of financial
statements under Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014
(“Previous GAAP”) to Ind AS of Shareholders’ equity as at March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 and of the
comprchensive net income for the year ended March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023. Refer Note 1A for
information on how the Group adopted Ind AS.

All amounts included in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements are reported in Indian Rupzes
(“INR” or “Rs.”), which is also the Group’s functional currency. All the values are rounded to the nearest
Lakhs (INR 00,000) up to two decimals, except otherwise indicated.

These Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by the board of directors at its
meeting held on July 07+ | 2025,

Basis of preparation and presentation:
Accounting Convention:




1.3

The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group has been prepared in accordance with Ind AS
110 - "Consolidated Financial Statements" issued under relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention:
The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:
i Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments) and
ii.  Defined benefits plan — plan assets are measured at fair value.

Current versus non-current classification:
The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle; or

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other asscts are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle; or

- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after rhe
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating cycle,

Key accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions:

The preparation of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions. These estimates, judgements znd
assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts and liabilites,
the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of
accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgements
and the use of assumptions in these Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been disclosed in -he

notes below:

Judgments:

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial
Statements.




(a) Leases:

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That s, it considers all relevant factors that create an econornic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Greup
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its
control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (2
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

B. Estimates and assumptions:
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilitics, are described below. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results
could differ from these estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes

aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the Ind
AS Consolidated Financial Statements in the period in which changes are made and if material, then effects
are disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements.

(a) Taxes:

(b

)

(©

(d

~

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based
on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.

Defined benefit plans:

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments
in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality
rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions
and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. The same is disclosed in Note 39,
‘Employee Benefit Expense’.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuaton
techniques, including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model, which involve various judgements znd
assumptions.

Property, plant and equipment:
Property, plant and equipment represents significant portion of the asset base of the Group. The
charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of assets expec:ed
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useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual value of Group's
assets are determined by management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including
at the end of each reporting period. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets,
in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life such as change in technology or
commercial obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in production or from a change in
market demand of the product or service output of the asset.

Material Accounting Policies:
Basis / Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiary:

A subsidiary is an entity that is, directly or indirectly, controlled by the Holding Company. Controls exists
when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, has power over the investee, is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, obrains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Holding Company, directly or inditectly, loses control of -he
subsidiary. Income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
Ind AS Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the Holding Company, directly or
indirectly, gains control until the date when the Holding Company, directly or indirectly, ceases to control
the subsidiary.

The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements relating to "EPACK PREFAB TECHNOLOGIES
LIMITED" (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries have been prepared on the following basis:

(@) The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries are
combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together items of assets, liabilities, equity, incomes,
expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions
resulting in unrealised Profit / (Loss) in accordance with the Ind AS 110 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been harmonised to ensure consistency with
the policics adopted by the Holding Company.

(b) Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as
Inventory, are eliminated in full.

() The Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies
for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible,
in the same manner as the Holding Company’s Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements.

(d) The carrying amount of the Holding Company’s investment in each subsidiary is offset (eliminatzd)
against the Holding Company’s portion of the equity in each subsidiary.

(¢) Non-controlling interest represents that part of the total comprehensive income and net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned, directly or indirectly, by the Holding Company.

(f) Loss of Control:
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:
i. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
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ii. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests.

iii. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity.

iv. Recognises the fair value of the consideration received.

v. Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income to profit or loss or retained carnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

vi. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained.

vii. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

Associates

Tnvestment in eatities in which there exists significant influence but not a controlling interest are accouned
for under the equity method i.e. the investment is initially recorded at cost, identifying any goodwill/ capital
reserve arising at the time of acquisition, as the case may be, which will be inherent in investment. The
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the share of aet
assets of the investee, adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting policies of -he
Group. The Ind AS Consolidated statement of profit and loss includes the Group’s share of the results of
the operations of the investee.

Business Combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisiion method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and -he
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. At the acquisition
date, the identifiable assets acquired, and the liabilities assumed arc’recogniscd at their acquisition date fair
values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation
and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is not probable.

Property, plant and equipment:

Recognition and measurement:

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies as an asset is measured on initial recognition at its
cost. Following the initial recognition, all items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, less
accumulated depreciation, and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes or levies, directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its
working condition for its intended use and the initial estimate of decommissioning, restoration and sim lar
liabilitics, if any. Such cost also includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Other indirect
expenses incurred relating to project, net of income earned during the project development stage prior to
its intended use, are considered as pre-operative expenses and disclosed under capital work-in-progress.

Ttems such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment that meet the definition of property,
plant and equipment are capitalised at cost and depreciated over their useful life.
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If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. The Group has
carried out technical analysis for identification of significant components with different useful life with that
of useful life of the original assets to which it belongs. However, based on technical analysis carried out by
the plant’s technical personnel, it has been observed that the useful lives of significant components are
approximately equivalent to those of the original assets to which they belong. Consequently, separate useful
lives are not assigned to significant components. All the significant components are depreciated based on
the same useful life with that of original assets to which it belongs.

Subsequent Expenditure:
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group and cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Depreciation:

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment of Holding Company is provided to the extent of
depreciable amount on the Straight Line Method (SLM) however the Epack Petrochem Solutions Private
Limited provides the Depreciation on Written Down Value (WDV) Method. Depreciation is provided by
the Group based on useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013
Frechold land is not depreciated. Useful life considered for calculation of depreciation for various classes
of assets are as under:

Sr. No. Asset class Useful life (Years)
1 Building 30
2 Computers 3
3 Furniture and Fittings 10
4 Vehicle / Motor Cars 8-10
5 Office Equipments 10
6 Electrical Installation (Fittings) / Plant & Machinery 10/ 15

The uscful lives, residual values of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment and che
depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period. If any of these expectations differs
from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate and adjus:ed
prospectively.

De-recognition:
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress:

Projects under which tangible assets are not yet ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-
progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental expenses and attributable borrowing
costs. Advances given towards acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
disclosed as other non-current assets (Capital Advances) and not included as a part of capital work-in-
progress.
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1.9

1.10

Costs incurred during the period of implementation of a project, till it is commissioned, is accounted as
capital work-in-progress and after commissioning the same is transferred/allocated to the respective item
of property, plant and equipment.

Investment property:

Recognition and measurement:

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property. Policies with respect to depreciation, useful life and de-
recognition are followed on the same basis as stated for property, plant and equipment above.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an external independent valuer.

Transfer of property from investment property to the property, plant and equipment is made when -he
property is no longer held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both at carrying amonnt
of the property transferred.

Intangible assets:

Recognition and Measurement:

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the assets will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are
initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumula-ed
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent Expenditure:

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in he
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in statement of profit and loss in “he
period in which expenditure is incurred.

Amortisation:

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the estimated useful economic life-using the Straight
Line Method (SLM). The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in rhe
statement of profit and loss. The estimated useful life of intangible assets as determined by the Group is
mentioned as below:

Sr. No. Asset class Useful life (Years)
1 Computer software 8-15

Leases:
The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116.
Identification of a lease requires significant judgment.

The Group uses judgment in assessing whether a contract (or part of contract) include a lease, the lease
term (including anticipated renewals), the applicable discount rate, variable lease payments whether are in-
substance fixed. The judgment involves assessment of whether the asset included in the contract is a fully
or partly identified asset based on the facts and circumstances, whq;‘hcrtp‘gf:cggtract include a lease and
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non-lease component and if so, separation thereof for the purpose of recognition and measurement,
determination of lease term basis, inter alia the non-cancellable period of lease and whether the lessee
intends to opt for continuing with the use of the asset upon the expiry thereof, and whether the lease
payments are fixed are variable or a combination of both.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of -he
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of -he
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Right of Use Assets:

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date -he
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulared
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilites.
The cost of right-of-usc assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
usc assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of lease.

Lease Liabilities:

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including; in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest znd
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, or a change in the lease payment.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets:

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases /rent (Le. those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). In addition, these leases also meet the criteria for the low-value asset lease recognition
exemption, as the constituent components are deemed to be of low individual value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over rhe
lease term.

Financial instruments:
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets and liabilities at initial recognition. The
classification depends on the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets:
Initial recognition and measurement:




All financial assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to rhe
acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to ~he
fair value on initial recognition. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognised using trade date
accounting.

Subsequent measurement:

(a) Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it meets the following criteria:

i) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect
contractual cash flows, and

i) the contractual terms of the financial assct give rise on a specified date to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

(b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it meets the following criteria:

1) theasset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets, and

ii) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that represents
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

The Group has made an irrevocable clection for its investments which are classified as cquity instruments
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

On de-recognition of such financial assets, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is not reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss.

(¢) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets are reclassified subsequent to their recognition, if the Group changes its business model
for managing those financial assets. Changes in business model are made and applied prospectively from
the reclassification date which is the first day of immediately next reporting period following the changes
in business model in accordance with principles laid down under Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments.

(d) Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures:
The Group has accounted for its investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture at cost less
impairment loss (if any) in accordance with Ind AS 27 — Separate Financial Statements.

(e) Other equity investments:

All other equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised in statement of profit
and loss, except for those equity investments for which the Group has elected to present the value changes
in other comprehensive income. However, dividend on such equity investments is recognised in statement
of profit and loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

Impairment of financial assets:

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group uses 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model, for evaluating
impairment of financial assets other than those measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (FVTPL).
Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:
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® The 12-months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on

the financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

* Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events

over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables the Group applies 'simplified approach' which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. The Group uses historical default rates to determine
impairment loss on the portfolio of trade receivables. At each reporting date these historical default rates
are reviewed and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

IFor other assets, the Group uses 12-months ECL method to provide for impairment loss where there is
no significant increase in credit risk. If there is significant increase in credit risk, full lifetime ECL method
is used.

Financial liabilities:

Initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost,
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance cost.

Subsequent measurement:

Financial liabilities are carricd at amortised cost using the cffective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value
due to the short maturity of these instruments.

De-recognition of financial instruments:

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de- -recognition under Ind AS 109.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, “he
Group continues to recognize the financial asset and the proceeds received are recognized as borrowing,

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from the balance sheet when -he
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off the amount and it intends, cither to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Fair value measurement:
The Group measures financial instruments, such as, investments, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
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®  In the principal market for the asset or liability,
® In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants wo ald
use when pricing the assct or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.
The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in -he
Financial Statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, which gives
highest priority to quoted prices in active markets and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs.

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability cither directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on rhe
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hicrarchy
as explained above,

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflcws
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of 2 CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Group’s corporate assets (c.g., central office building for providing support to various CGUs) do not
generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a corporate asset, recoverable amount is
determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to other comprehensive income. For such
properties, the impairment is recognised in other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous
revaluation surplus. An impairment loss in respect of assets for which impairment loss has been recognised
in prior periods, the Group reviews at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has
decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying




amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

1.14 Foreign currencies transactions and translation:

Functional and Presentation Currency:

Items included in the Ind AS Consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of -he
primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency’). The Group’s Ind
AS Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR) which is also the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Initial recognition:

On initial recognition, transactions in foreign currencies entered by the Group are recorded in the functional
currencies, by applying to the foreign currency rate, the spot exchange rate between the functional currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange
transactions settled during the year are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Measurement of foreign currency items at reporting date:

Foreign currency monetary items (monetary assets and liabilities) of the Group are translated at the closing
exchange rates. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, are translazed
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency, are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is measured.

Exchange differences arising out of these translations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

1.15 Cash and cash equivalents:
The Group considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of
three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist
of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

1.16 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets:
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result cf a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of
the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is-

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by rhe
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the entity or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

(i) itis not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se-tle
the obligation or
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.




Disclosure of contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, -he
existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group or a present obligation that arises from past events
where it is cither not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of amount cannot be made.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more of uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity. Contingent assets are disclosed in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements by
way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

1.17 Revenue recognition (Revenue from Contracts with Customers):
The Group derives revenue primarily from sale of manufactured products being “EPS (Expandled
Polystyrene) Packaging and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions”. Revenue from contracts
with customers is recognised when the control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services.

(a) Sale of goods and services:
Revenue from sale of goods (including cartage) / services are recognised at the point of time when
control of the promised goods/services are transferred to the customer, generally on
dispatch/dclivery of the goods/scrvices except in case of export sales, which are recognised on :he
basis of bill of lading on satisfaction of performance obligation and transfer of control.

Sale of goods/services are recognised net of sales returns and trade discounts. Sales excludes
amounts of indirect taxes on sales.

ale of Pre-engineered icated Buildi tracts;

In respect of Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Contracts, revenue is recognised over a
period of time using the input method (equivalent to percentage-of-completion method) of
accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of completion of the performance
obligation.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, price concessions and incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customier.
Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers on behalf of the government.

Contracts are combined when the Group believes the underlying goods and services are a single
performance obligations, single commercial objectives or the consideration in one contract depends
on another. Otherwise, contracts are separated.

With respect to contracts where revenue is recognised over time, the Group measures the value of
services for which control is transferred to the customer over time based on certification of work
completed.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which such probability
occurs. Due to the uncertainties attached, the revenue on account of extra claims are accounted for
at the time of acceptance / settlement by the customers.




Liquidated Damages represents the expected claim which the Group may need to pay for non-
fulfilment of certain commitments as per terms of respective sales contracts. These are determined
on casc to case basis considering the dynamics of each contracts and factors relevant to that sale

Installation Services:

The Group provides installation services that are bundled together with the sale of products t a
customer. Contracts for bundled sale of products and installation services are considered as one
performance obligations because company believes underlying goods and services are a single
performance obligations single commercial objectives or the consideration in one contract depends
on another. Hence the installation services has been considered as a part of Sale of Pre-engincered
building contracts.

ale of Building Materials:

Revenue from sale of Building Materials are recognised at a point in time when control of the assct
is transferred to the customers generally on delivery of goods/materials. The payment terms depend
upon each contract entered into with the customer.

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Group estimate the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customers.
The variable consideration is estimated at the contract inception and constrained until it is highly

probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Significant Financing Component;

The Group applies the practical expedient for short term advances received from customers. Taat
is, the promised amount of consideration is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component if the year between the transfer of the promised goods or service and the payment is one
yeir or less.

(b) Contract Balances:

i) Contract Assets:
Revenue earned but not billed to customers against erection and sale of goods and services
is reflected as Contract Assets because the receipt of consideration is conditional on Group’s
performance under the contract (i.e. transfer control of related goods or services to the
Customers). On completion of installation and acceptance by the customer, the amount
recognised as contract asset is reclassified to Trade Receivables.

Contract Assets are subject to impairment assessment (refer material accounting policies
related to impairment of financial assets).

ii) Contract Liabilities:
A contract liability is recognised if a payment is received or payment is due (whichever is
carlier) from a contract before the Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract
liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract (i.c.
transfera contrnl of the related goods or services 1o the fustomers),
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(c) Dividend and interest income:
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the payment
has been established, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI), interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. Interest income
is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

(d) Rental income:
Rental income from investment property is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the
term of the lease.

(e) Insurance claims:
Claims receivable on account of insurance are accounted for to the extent no significant uncertainty
exists for the measurement and realisation of the amount.

Insurance claims, other than claim filed against fire accident, have been booked on receipt basis.

(f) Miscellaneous income:
All other income is recognized on an accrual basis, when there is no uncertainty in its ultimate
realization/ collection,

Government grants, subsidies and export incentives:

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attached conditions will be complied with.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presented within other
income.

Government grants/subsidies relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are deducted from
the Carrying amount of the Asscts, The Grant is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over he
useful life of the depreciable assets.

Inventories:
Inventories have been valued on the following basis:

Nature of inventories Basis of inventories valuation

Inventories of raw materials are valued at the lower of cost and nat
realisable value.

Raw material stock
Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined




on weighted average basis. Cost of raw material excludes all taxes ard

duties.
Semi-finished (WIP) goods | Semi-finished (WIP) goods stocks are valued at cost plus appropriate
stock overheads directly attributable to manufacturing activity.

Inventories of finished goods are valued at the lower of cost and not
realisable value.

Finished goods stock . )
g0 Cost represents material, labour and manufacturing expenses and other
incidental costs to bring the inventory in present location and condition.
Packing material stock Packing material stocks are valued at cost.

Stores & spares and
Consumables Stock
Stock in transit Stock in transit stocks are valued at material cost.

Stores & spares and Consumables stocks are valued at cost.

Further imported goods received and laying at port as at balance sheet date and the same is received in
factory during the subsequent month has been included in Inventories as goods in transit as at balance
sheet date.

The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by item basis. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimazed
costs necessary to make the sale.

1.20Employee benefits expense:

Short-Term Employee Benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period in which the employee renders the rela-ed
services. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees are recognised as an expense during the period when the employzes
render the services.

Post-Employment Benefits

Defined contribution plans:
The Group’s contribution paid/payable during the period to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and
Pension Scheme and other welfare funds are considered as defined contribution plans.

Recognition and measurements of defined contribution plan:
The contribution paid/payable under those plans are recognised as an expense, in the statement of profit
and loss during the period in which the employce renders the services.

If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds he
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess
is recognised as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to a reduction in future pavment cr a
eash refund.

Defined benefit plans:
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The Group pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Group at he
time of resignation superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days’ basic salary for every completed year of
service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

Recognition and measurements of defined benefit plan:
The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is calculated using the projected unit
credit method and spread over the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from

employees’ services.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.

1.21Tax expenses:
The tax expenses for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in
statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive

income, in which case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income.

(a) Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable
profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible under the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961.

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the
amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the income tax authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the balance sheert date.

(b) Deferred tax:

(©)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets znd
liabilities in the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred
tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefits of part or
all of such deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT):

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised if there is convincing evidence that the Group
will pay normal tax after the tax holiday period and the resultant asset can be measured reliably. The
excess tax paid under MAT provisions, being over and above regular tax liability, can be carried
forward for a period of the years from the year of recognition and is available for sct off against futire
tax liabilities computed under regular tax provisions, to the extent MAT liability.
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(d) Presentation of current and deferred tax:
Current and deferred tax are recognised as income or an expense in the statement of profit and loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income, 1n which case,
the current and deferred tax income/expense are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are
offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax asscts against currznt
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
tax authority on the Group.

1.22Borrowing costs:
Borrowing costs includes interest & exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they arc regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are capitalized as part
of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expensed in the period in which
they occur.

1.23Earnings per share:
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted carnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving the basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
cquity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

1.24Segment Reporting (Operating Segment):
An operating scgment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operat.ng
Decision Maker (“CODM?”) to make decisions for which discrete financial information is available.

The Group identifies operating segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and return and :he
internal organisation and management structure and for which discrete financial information is available.
The CODM monitors the operating results of the segments for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment.

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for
preparing and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

The operating segment has been identified and reported taking into account its internal financial reporting,
performance evaluation and organizational structure of its operations. Operating segment 1s reported in the
manner cvaluated by board, considered as chicf operating decision maker under Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segments”.




The Group has two segment of activity, namely “Manufacturing of EPS (Expanded Polystyrene) Packaging
and Pre-engineered and Prefabricated Building Solutions™, in accordance wirh rthe definition of “Segment™
covered under Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 108 on operating segments,

1.25 Cash flow statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before extraordinary 1rems and
tax ts adjusted for the effects of rransactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or
funire eash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Group are sepregated based on the available informaton.

1.26Events occurred after the balance sheet date:
Where events occurring after the balance sheet date provide evidence of condirions thar existed ar the end
of the reporting period, the impact of such evenrs is adjusted within the Ind AS Consolidared Financial
Statemnents. (therwse, events after the balance sheet dare of material stze or nature are only disclosed,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
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